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1,066,631 1,054,980 1’038’§§; 1,197,385 1,201,048
81,543,940 | 80,653,221 | 84,005,630 | 91,540,083 | 91,820,120
394,537 330,571 3?1’fg§ 426,288 527,025
30,162,354 | 25,272,153 | 27,667,408 | 32,589,718 | 40,291,061
159,074 107,458 148,059 143,959 64,340
(@) 2 (GRS)) (D) ()
12,161,207 8,215,164 | 11,319,111 | 11,005,666 4,918,793
120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
9,174,000 9,174,000 9,174,000 9,174,000 9,174,000
120,000,000 | 120,000,000 | 120,000,000 | 120,000,000 [ 120,000,000
1,133,582 1,234,777 1,377,794 1,498,135 1,564,142
86,662,344 | 94,308,702 | 105,332,351 | 114,532,421 | 119,578,656
15,616,927 | 16,806,845 | 18,513,506 | 20,362,315 | 23,237,498
1,193,914,069 | 1,284,883,300 | 1,415,357,534 | 1,556,698,982 | 1,776,506,722
9.447 10.290 11.482 12.484 13.035
722.223 786.671 877.799 954.402 996.526
Co 1.326 0.895 1.234 1.200 0.536
101.373 68.423 94.339 91.740 40.977
7 7.259 7.347 7.442 7.357 6.731
€9 14.032 8.703 10.746 9.609 4.113
(1%8'§g§) (1,025,117)  (1,306,329)|  (1,045,144) (558,559)
(9,067,046)| (78,370,195)| (29,868,852)| (79,901,259)| (42,701,836)
(%4'ff§) (15,431) (3.757) (25,964) (43,163)
(1,112,577 (1,179,700) 287,223)|  (1,984,948)  (3,299,811)
59,490 1,110,014 1,324,138 1,205,087 1,123,095
4,548,011 | 84,860,570 | 101,230,350 | 92,128,901 | 85,860,613
1,199,106 1,268,572 1,282,624 1,416,603 1,937,976
91,671,654 | 96,982,329 | 98,056,605 | 108,299,209 | 148,158,265
598.39 655.62 639.70 717.04 851.95
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426,288 527,025
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21,206,756 24,067,314
1,834,625 1,533,155
13,106,166 16,136,283
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1,197,385 1,193,550
(612,687) (434,974)
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(903,383) (758,992)
294,002 434,558
195,484 169,740
489,486 604,298
(45,006) (189,127)
(16,462) (27,370)
(133,803) (164,036)
(16,244) (28,111)
(19,460) (30,840)
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212,913 144,767
(59,567) (34,600)
153,346 110,167

37/292

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

100

2020 31
2019 31

38/292



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

39/292



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

- 1,454,367 - 1,454,367
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11,070,000 (11,070, 000) - -

16,900 - 39,832 56,732

16,978,920 3,108,962 39,832 20,127,714
5,084,879 - - 5,084,879
4,329,317 - - 4,329,317

829,090 7,947,759 - 8,776,849
3,520,046 (3.520,046) - -
4,351,900 (4,351,900) - -

25,000 - 418,261 443,261
18,140,232 75,813 418,261 18,634,306
(1,161,312) 3,033,149 (378,429) 1,493,408
- 1,634,682 - 1,634,682
1,937,976 - - 1,937,976
4,870,214 13,424,261 - 18,294,475
10,980,000 (10,980, 000) - -
- - 36,907 36,907

17,788,190 4,078,943 36,907 21,904,040
4,575,501 - - 4,575,501
4,221,561 - - 4,221,561

624,702 11,290,020 - 11,914,722
6,120,840 (6,120, 840) - -
4,323,496 (4,323,496) - -

235,400 - 370,231 605,631

- 45,087 - 45,087
20,101,500 890,771 370,231 21,362,502
(2,313,310) 3,188,172 (333,324) 541,538
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31
2019 2020
3a 799,433 61,117 765,942 58,556
358,461 27,404 391,487 29,929
3b 39,491 3,019 43,619 3,335
1,197,385 91,540 | 1,201,048 91,820
3a (480,401)|  (36,727)| (350,005)|  (26,758)
8b (290,696)|  (22,224)| (324,018)  (24,771)
(771,007)|  (58,950)(  (674,023)|  (51,529)
426,288 32,590 527,025 40,291
4 45,353 3,467 46,770 3,576
471,641 36,057 573,795 43,867
9b (45,006) 3.,441)  (197,127)|  (15,070)
9c (16,462) (1,259)|  (27.,370) (2,092)
(133,803)]  (10,229)[ (164,036)  (12,541)
5 (16,244) @,242)|  (28,111) (2,149)
I (19,460) (1,488)|  (30,840) (2,358)
(11,429) @) (11,967) (915)
(9,347) (715) (3,634) (278)
(24,823) (1,898)  (32,568) (2,490)
25 8,459 647 11,153 853
203,526 15,560 89,295 6,827
6 (59,567) 4,554)|  (24,955) (1,908)
143,959 11,006 64,340 4,919
15 1,535 117 1,667 127
145,494 11,123 66,007 5,046
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@
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21 1,416,603 108,299 | 1,937,976 148,158
8a | 17,076,012 | 1,305,461 | 18,035,325 | 1,378,801
8b 1,414,487 108,138 | 1,567,432 119,830
17 277,777 21,236 | 1,462,371 111,798
25 77,325 5,911 90,145 6,892
28 30,333 2,319 41,426 3,167
26 13,046 997 23,849 1,823
27 — — 42,067 3,216
23 56,732 4,337 36,907 2,822
20,362,315 | 1,556,699 | 23,237,498 | 1,776,507

10 5,084,879 388,739 | 4,575,501 349,797
11 | 13,106,166 | 1,001,966 | 16,136,283 | 1,233,619
17 143,422 10,965 211,415 16,163
29 5,622 430 10,177 778
24a 443,261 33,887 605,631 46,300
24b 80,830 6,179 89,262 6,824
27 — — 45,087 3,447
18,864,180 | 1,442,167 | 21,673,356 | 1,656,928
1,498,135 114,532 | 1,564,142 119,579

14 120,000 9,174 120,000 9,174
15 6,809 521 8,476 648
16 1,371,326 104,838 | 1,435,666 109,757
1,498,135 114,532 | 1,564,142 119,579
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— —_ 16,884 16,884
2018 120,000 5,274 | 1,269,404 | 1,394,678
— — 143,959 143,959
— 1,535 — 1,535
— 1,535 143,959 145,494
16 — — (42,037) (42,037)
2019 31 120,000 6,809 | 1,371,326 | 1,498,135
2019 120,000 6,809 | 1,371,326 | 1,498,135
— — 64,340 64,340
— 1,667 — 1,667
— 1,667 64,340 66,007
2020 31 120,000 8,476 | 1,435,666 | 1,564,142
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— — 11,006 11,006
— 117 — 117
— 117 11,006 11,123
16 — — (3,214) (3,214)
2019 31 9,174 521 104,838 114,532
2019 9,174 521 104,838 114,532
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806,067 2,164,180 3,052,238 7,672,664 — 13,695,149
336,367 25,928 33,719 47,247 — 443,261
1,389,804 2,489,257 5,024,398 10,461,266 — 19,364,725
(577,821) (1,242,536)  (273,230) — —  (2,093,587)
582,103 1,234,355 267,974 — — 2,084,432
1,878 43 (15,255)  (35,708) — (49,042)
107,499 15,863 1,987,820 3,358,356 — 5,469,538
(107,355)  (11,702) (2,065,649) (3,423,933) —  (5,608,639)
6,304 (3,977)  (98,340)  (101,285) —  (197,298)
1,396,108 2,485,280 4,926,058 10,359,981 — 19,167,427

12

2020 31
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
190,136 265,691 1,524,130 2,657,249 — 4,637,206
1,054,142 2,030,046 3,401,664 10,196,264 — 16,682,116
496,767 16,848 37,336 54,680 — 605,631
497 996 4,595 29,471 14,720 50,279
1,741,542 2,313,581 4,967,725 12,937,664 14,720 21,975,232
(726,539)  (814,366)  (380,113) — —  (1,921,018)
656,047 756,866 346,862 — — 1,759,775
673 (1,807)  (40,970)  (55,859) — (97,963)
17,317 798,229 1,006,318 5,916,821 — 7,738,685
(11,709)  (883,763) (1,161,514) (6,801,883) —  (8,858,869)
(64,211)  (144,841)  (229,417)  (940,921) —  (1,379,390)
1,677,331 2,168,740 4,738,308 11,996,743 14,720 20,595,842
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2019 31 2020 31
34,603 97,976
1,382,000 1,840,000
1,416,603 1,937,976
202.9
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2019 31 2020 31
143,959 64,340
(8,459) (11,153)
16,244 28,111
1,980 1,779
23,821 25,600
(15,246) (16,112)
668,172 2,525,623
(307,577) (1,283,789)
(3,698) 135,150
16,462 27,370
(1,545,662) (1,094,463)
(162,074) (164,494)
16,248 —
5,622 4,555
71,017 192,311
(19,612) 19,825
(17,598) (20,990)
71,257 (992,222)
(1,045,144) (558,559)
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(b)
AASB 16
2018 2019
31 31
16,529,776 1,247,125 361,954 52,190 — — 18,191,045
AASB 16
2019 2020
31 31
18,191,045 1,127,148 1,341,073 52,518 — — 20,711,784
§ — (5,197) — — 35,315 14,969 45,087
23
2019 31 2020 31
20,190 24,300
35,088 11,913
1,454 694
56,732 36,907
12 56,045 36,088
12 687 819
56,732 36,907
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@
2019 31 2020 31
12,000 12,959
60,089 55,134
182,881 167,057
107,312 285,538
64,224 46,473
* 16,755 38,470
443,261 605,631
12 396,014 550,951
12 47,247 54,680
443,261 605,631
2020 31 19.1
(b)
2019 31 2020 31
80,830 89,262
2019 31 2020 31
58,089 60,294

AASB 15 2020 31 2019 31
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20;? 2052 2019 2020
31 31
@
67,331 77.325 45.45 45.45
8,459 11,153
1,535 1,667
31 77.325 90,145
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2019 2020
31 31
(b)
11,845 15,503
(3,386) (4,350)
8,459 11,153
( ) )
©
2019
575,447 497,516 61,848 8,459
2020
646,388 555,637 64,346 11,153
2019 2020
31 31
(d)
1,666 —

2019

20

50
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@
(b)
26
2019 31
( ) ( )
10,417 8,358 2,059
28,219 23,699 4,520
7,479 1,012 6,467
46,115 33,069 13,046
2020 31
( ) ( )
23,100 9,695 13,405
28,315 25,310 3,005
9,214 1,775 7,439
60,629 36,780 23,849
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31 )
482 2,142 5,829 8,453
2,009 4,216 6,860 13,085
— — (4,441) (4,441)
(432) (1,838) (1,781) (4,051)
2,059 4,520 6,467 13,046
31 )
2,059 4,520 6,467 13,046
13,447 1,978 6,078 21,503
— — (3,111) (3,111)
(1,445) (2,183) (1,995) (5,623)
(162) 162 — —
(494) (1,472) — (1,966)
13,405 3,005 7,439 23,849
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2019 2020 31
35,315 42,067
35,315 42,067
35,315 45,087
35,315 45,087
1,441 4,942
33,874 40,145
35,315 45,087

48,620,000 35,315,000 AASB 16
38

2019 31 2020 31
5 — 6,553
( ) 3a — 1,144
( ) — 997

5,197,000
@
10
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IT
10
171,357 141,024 30,333
196,418 154,992 41,426
2019 2020
31 31
25,256 30,333
17,270 25,062
(12,193) (13,969)
30,333 41,426
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2019 31 2020 31
49,164 97,920
6,125 (39,599)
32,301 37,070
5,819 7,460
93,409 102,851
91,838 107,162
7,193 5,866
99,031 113,028
(5.622) (10,177)
96,238 93,409
(1,237) 48,756
(4,785) (45,724)
1,845 4,769
1,348 1,641
93,409 102,851
79,990 99,031
17,772 15,324
1,269 (1,327)
99,031 113,028
(5.622) (10,177)
(21,439) (2,091)
15,817 (8,086)
(5.622) (10,177)
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47,042 —

3,223 —
22,735 —
21,084 —

47,042 —

2019 31 2020 31
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2019 31 2020 31

2,402,000 3,183,110

31
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2019 31 2020 31
20,254 17,580
(15,365) (17,993)

(101) (106)
(229) (201)
(351) —
847 207

84 143

107 —
(26,916) (21,365)
4,886 2,030
35,454 40,786
139,405 116,675
8,022 9,596
— 840

31
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2020 31
2019 31 2020 31
1,416,603 1,937,976
17,076,012 17,502,873
1,414,487 1,567,432
343,139 1,562,206
4,284 4,284
30,333 41,426
13,046 23,849
— 42,067
908,852 1,385,201
21,206,756 24,067,314
1,834,625 1,533,155
13,106,166 16,136,283
4,102,375 3,827,271
143,422 211,415
5,622 12,577
443,261 611,642
80,830 89,262
— 45,087
19,716,301 22,466,692
1,490,455 1,600,622
120,000 120,000
1,370,455 1,480,622
1,490,455 1,600,622
2020 31 10,416 9,141 2019
8,947 8,998
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2020 31
2019 31 2020 31
799,433 758,588
358,461 391,487
39,491 43,475
1,197,385 1,193,550
(612,687) (434,974)
(290,696) (324,018)
(903,383) (758,992)
294,002 434,558
195,484 169,740
489,486 604,298
(45,006) (189,127)
(16,462) (27,370)
(133,803) (164,036)
(16,244) (28,111)
IT (19,460) (30,840)
(11,429) (11,967)
(9,347) (3,634)
(24,822) (4,446)
212,913 144,767
(59,567) (34,600)
153,346 110,167
@
)
30
©
31
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2019 31 2020 31
( )
579,732 652,908
264,635 382,055
339,961 291,244
1,184,328 1,326,207
33,828 19,642
1,218,156 1,345,849
( )
(
)
134,218 123,838
37
Pty
ASIC 2016/785
2020 31 1,664.0 2019 1,563.5
2020 31 123.8 2019

221.4
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117
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2019 31

« ) 2019
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2019
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2019

2019

AASB

47,042

40,912
(428)

(5,169)

35,315

1,441
33,874

35,315
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2019
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() 2001 Corporations Regulations 2001
() 2020 31

(b)
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@
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Conncdidated Cossolidated
Mate 00 0
5'000 S'000
Interesl revenue 3a T6E5942 799,413
RAental incoma on motor yehicles under operating leaso 391487 335461
Fe inaimen 1] 43619 39491
Financing amsd sbmilar revenue 1201048 1,157 385
Interest expende and similar charges 3a |35Q,005) =80, 401]
Depredation expense on mator vehicles under operating |ease B EFLTGE ] (250 696)
Hﬂanﬂumlnﬂﬂminw IE?i,ﬂJ!i [T7r1,097)
Het financing revenue 527,028 428288
Othes revenue 4 A6,770 15,353
et aperating income 573,795 471,641
Credit Impairment losses EL 1397.137) (45006
Hon-credil impasment ladses 0 27,970y \16462)
Employes benefits mpense | 104 000 1132 H03)
Degrecation, write-off and amortisation H 28.111) 16,244)
1T and commushication egpense 130, 840) (19460
Salies and marketing copense f11.967) [11,428)
Qecupancy sppnie 13.,634) [9.347)
Other experses {32.568) (PR FEI]
share of net profits of ssocates accounted bor using 1he snuity method 25 11,153 459
Profit before Income tax 89,2595 202,526
Incomie tax expense L1} 124 955) (159 567
Prefit attributable 1o owners of Toyeta Finance Australia Limited 64,340 143,959
Other comprehe nshve Income
eyt ray e recimitified fo profir ar foss
Exchange differences on transkation of foreign operations 15 1,667 1,535
Total compiehenibne income sttrbutable te ewnerd of
Toyota Finance Australla Lmited 65,007 145434

The above consalidated statement of comprehensive incoma should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
motes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Consolidated Corsclidated
00 09
Mote £'000 S'oon
AsHELE
Cash sne cash equivslents 21 1337976 LA16,603
Loans and receivables Ha 18,03%,32% 1rame0ni
Botor wehiches undes operating leage E] 1567 432 1414 487
Der prative financial instruments 17 1462371 23T
Irvpstment accounbed for using the equity method 15 90,145 71318
Intangible soets 2B 41426 30,333
Froperty, plant and eguipment 26 23849 13040
Hight=ol-une asants 27 A 067 .
Other wisets 13 36,907 56,732
Taotal assets 23237 A58 20352315
Labilties
Due to benks snd ather Fnancial indlifutiong 13 4,575,501 5084 870
Bonds and commercial paper 11 16,196 283 13,1068 166
Derivative financial instrumonts 17 111415 143422
Deferned tax Kabilities 2% 10,177 5,622
Other liabehiies a El% 611 443 261
Comtract liabifitles Mb 89,262 30,830
Leme liabifitie i 45087 -
Tatal liabilities 21,573,356 18.864,180
Nit wmsets 1,564,143 1,458,135
Equity
Cortriiated equity 14 130,000 120,000
Boserves 15 24T & 800
Retained oamings 16 1435566 1371316
Tatal equity 1,564,143 149,135

The abowe consolidated statement of financial pasition should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Artributable to cwners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Contributed Retained
equity Reserees carnings Total equity
Mt 000 5'000 §'000 5'000
Balance at 1 Aprll 2019 120,000 5,800 1,371,328 1.4548,13%
Profit for ths yesr - - 64,340 G, 340
Other comprebensive income - 1,667 . 1,867
Total comprehermive incame far 1he year - 1667 64,340 66,007
Balanice at 31 March 2020 120,000 8,476 1,435 665 1,564,142
Balance at 1 April 2018 120,000 5274 1,252 520 1,377,794
Change m accounting palicy - - 16 884 16,884
Restated total equity ot 1 April 2018 120,000 5,274 1,369 404 1,394,6TH
Profit for the year - - 143 955 143050
Other comprehensve income - 1,535 . 1,535
Total compreherds ve income for the year - 1,535 1£3.955 145,494
Trassactions with cwners in their capacity a5 cwnens:
Dindidera paid 16 = = (#2.037) (A2.037)
Balance at 31 March 2009 120,008 6,808 197132 1.498,1%8

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity shouwld be read in conjunction with the acoompanying notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Cash flows from operating ectivitics

Met cash outfiow from lending and other operating acthities

brterest recoeved
Skt (e lBase payments
Bental income recefved
Intprest pasd
Fncoimie tanes paid
Met cash outfiow from oporating activities

Cosh fiows from investing activities
Payments for antangible acoets
Payments for propeny, plant snd equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Nat cash cutfiow from invetting sctivities

Cosh flows from flnoncing octivities
Proceeds rom Borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Principal lzase payments
Dividends paid to panent

Net cash inflow from financeg acthvities

Het increase Im cadh and cash eguivalents
Cash and cazh eguivalents at begirning of peried
Cash and eash squivalents at end of period

Consolidated Consoldated
110 0
$'000 S'000

{1.427.580) §1ETA,623)
946221 977.251
97} -

191 40T 58451
(426,300} [447.703)
41,300} I62,511)
|558,555) {1,085, 144)
[25,063) 2T
[21,503§ {13,085)
3402 4,991

— (3483 _{25,964)
16,100,255 16,724,397
14,974, 107} [15477.279)
|4,053) -

- W2.037)

1173,09% 1,205,087
521373 135,970
1416603 1382624
1937976 1AL6608

Thie abowe consolidated statement of cash flaws should be read in conjunction with the sccompanying notes.
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Basis of preparation

This section describes Toyata Finance Australia Limited's (“the company™) significant accounting poliches that
relate to the financial statements and notes of the sccounts. If an accounting policy relates to o particular note,
the applicable policy is contained within the refevant note. This section also shows new accounting standards,
amendments and interpretations and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or later years.

1. Corporate information

These financial statements cover the consolidated fnancial staternents of the consolidated entity camprising
Toyota Finance Australla Limited, as parent entity, and the entities it controfled (together referred to as the
“gonsolidated entity™) at the end of, or during the financial year,

The company (5 limited by shares, incorporated and domicied in Australia. its registered office and principal
place of business is:

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
Lewvel 9, 207 Pacific Highway
5T LEQONARDS, N5SW, 2065

A doscription of the nature of the consolidated entity"s principal activities is included in the directors’ report on
page 2, which is not part of the financial statements.

The financial staterments were authorised for issue by the directors on 5 June 2020, The comparry has the power
to amend and reissue the inancial statemaents,

2. Surmmary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting palicies adopted in the preparation of the finandal statements are set out belaw, These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary,
comparative infarmatien has been restated to canform te changes in presentation in the current year. The
financial statements are for the consolidated entity consksting of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its
controlled entities,

[a) Basis of preparation

These general purpese financlal statements have been prepared in accardance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Awstralian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act
2001. Toyots Finance Audtralia Limited is a far-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

Compliance with IFRS

The comodidated financial statemants of Toyota Finance Awstralia Limited and its controlled entities also comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards [ “IFRS") as issued by the Internatianal Accounting

Standards Board {"IASE"].

Histerical cost convention

These financizl statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities a1 fair value through profit of laws (derivatives).

[b) Principbes of consalidation

i Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statermnents incorporate the assets and liabilities of ol subsidiares of Toyata Finance
Australia Limited [“company™ or “parent entity”) a5 at 31 March 2000 and the results of alf subsidiaries for the

wyear then ended. Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its contralled entities together are referred to in the
financial staternents as the comolidated entity.

10
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Basis of preparation [continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
[b) Prineiples of consalidation {eontinued)

fil Subsidiares frontinued)

Subsidiaries are all entities {incheding structured entities] over which the company has control, The company
controls an entity when the company is exposed to, ar has rights to, variable returns from s involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through fs power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidizries are fully consolidated fram the date on which egntral is transferred o the consolidated entity, They
are deconsolidated from the date that the control ceases,

The acquisition method of sccounting is used to account for business combinations by the company,

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between consolidated entities are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are alse eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necossary to ensure
comsistency with the palicies adopted by the parent entity.

fii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the company has significant infleence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of betwoen 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in assaciates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after inftially
being recognised at cost.

The comparny’s share of its associates” post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements In reserves |s recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumidlative
post-acquisition movements are adjisted againg the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends recevalie
from associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the company's share of losses in an associote equals or exceeds its interest in the assaciate, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behall of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its assoclates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity's interest in associates. Unrealised kasses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed whers
negessary to ensure consistency with the pelicies adopted by the conselidated entity,

[c) Foreign currency translation

i} Fnctional and presentalion currency

Iterrmes incluadied in the financial statements aof each of the cansolidated entities are measured uling the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entlty operates (the functional currency], The consolidated
fimancial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which & the company’s functional and presentation

Currency.

On consclidation, the exchange differences arising from the transkation of the net investment in the foreign
entity from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income,

fit) Transactlons and balances

Foreign currency iransactions are translated into the functienal currency using the exchange rates prevadling at
the dates of the transactions, Fereign exchange gaing and losses resubting from the sertiement of such

1"
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
[} Forelgn currency translation (continued)

(i) Fransactions and balances {continued)

transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of manetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Fareign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings ane presented in the income statement, within
financing expense and simdlar charges. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presanted in tha income
staternent an a net Basis within ather income or ather expenses,

[d) Rounding of amounts

The company s of a kind referred Lo in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191 refating to the “rounding off™ of
amounts in the financial staterments. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance
with the Instrumient to the nearest thousand dollars, of in certain cases, the nearest dollas,

[e) New or revised accounting standards and Interpretation

New and revised standards came Iinto effect during the current reporting period and the company has had to
change its accounting policies and make retrospective adjustments with the cumulative effect of initially
applying AASB 16 Leases recognised at the date of initlal application, The impact of the adoption of the leasing
standard and the new accaunting policies are diselosed in Nate 38

[f) Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemie

The COVID-19 pandemic has increated the estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the consalidated

financial statements. The estimation uncertainty i associated with:

*  The contineed spread of COVID-19 that has led to disruption and volatility In the global capital markets,
which eould intreade the company's cost of eapital and adversely alfect the company™s ability to acceds the
capital markets,

® It is possible that the continued spread of COVID-19 could cause an economic slowdown or recession (which
could adversely affect the demand for vehicles and the demand for the company's finanding and insurance
products and increase the company's delinquendies, credit losses and dealsr defaults), cause disruplion in
the supply chains of the vehicles the company finances, or cause other unpredictable events, each of which
could adverscly affect the company's business, results of eperations or financial condition,

= Standard & Poor's has downgraded Toyota Motor Corporation and its subsidiaries to A+ {outlook negative]
ard short-term rating of A-1+ [owtlook negative). Moody's has confirmed the Al long-term ratings, as well
a3 thie Prima-1 shoart-term ratings (outlook negative). These ratings changes are reflective of the glabally
widening kmpact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The consolidated entity has applied accounting estimates in the consolidated financial statements based on
forecasts of economic conditions which reflect expeciations and assumiptions as at 31 March 2020 about luture
events that the directors believe are reasonable In the circumstances. There ls a considerable degree of
judgerment involved in preparing the forecasts. The underlying assumplions are also subject to uncertainties
which are often putside the contral of the consodidated entity, Accordingly, actual economic conditions are likely
to be different from those Torecast since amicipated events frequently do not cocur as expected, and the effect
of those differences may signéficantly impact accounting estimates incfuded in the consolidated financial
staternents.

The significant accounting estimates impacted by these forecasts and associated uncertainties are related Lo the
expacted credit losses [“ECL") calculations, The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the accounting estimates

Is discussed in Motes 9 and 20b. Users to the finandial statements should carelully consider these disclosures in
light of the inherent uncertainty described abowe,
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Results for the year

This section provides further information and accounting poliches about individual Bne items in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive incame, including:

= interest revenue and expense

s fegincome on originated assets

= ather revenug

= depreciation, write-alf and amartisation

= income Lax eapenss

®  segment fesults

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges

Comelidated tomplidated

H0ED 1019
|a} Interest revenue and Expene 000 000
Intereit rewenue
Irterest revenue 245,401 971401
Fet lpaima ricesgninsd Lalng the Mot intinedt rate st b 69,096 6,710
Fee egpenae recopnised weing the effective inmterest rate method [T4R,615) (142 &TE)
Tertal bnterest rovenus TE5.942 ALY
Interest expense and similar charges
brvter it enpenss 369,968 471378
Mt loss om trenslation of Boreign currency debt 1506, 737 JE1 25
Fair warkas e g shor vt v Tinancial brum s ab fair videe thiough prod o loss [1,301,047) 123, TER)
Transaction cosss 23,203 T1ABE
Interirit on heave Rabiltie 1144 -
Total bvierett enperae and similar changes 350,005 480 801
|b) Fee income ewwed on orginated sasets
Adminletration snd gement fee LA M 113
Oty Toes 5,909 5,378
Total fee Intome 43,619 18401

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of direct sales costs and taxes,

The consalidated antity recognlses revenue when the amount of revenue can be reflably measured, it is probable
that future econaemic benefits will flaw ta the consalidated entity and specific eriteria have been met. Revense
Is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

[i] Term lgans and term purchase

Interest income arising from term boans and term purchase are recognised over the period of the contract using
the effective inlerest rate methad. Income derived from term loans and term purchases is intluded in “interest
revene”,

(i} Leased assets where the consalidated entity is the lessor

@) Finpnce leases

Interest income derived from finance leases b recognised over the period of the contract using the effective
Interest rate method. Income derived from finance leases is included in “interest revenue®.
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Results for the year (continued)

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges [continued)

(i} Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessor {continued)

(B) Dperating leases

Lease rentals receivable on operating leases are recognised on a systemnatic basis over the effective lease term.
Incorme derived from operating leases is included in “rental incomse on motor vehicles under operating lease”,
Operating beases had an average term of 45 manths in the current period [2019: 43 months).

(I} Fee income and expense

Fee income and expense are an integral part to the effective interest rate of the financial assets or llabilitses and
are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate (Note 2a).

Revenue fram administration and management fees are recognised over Lime as the services are provided whilst
other fees are recognised at the poink in time when the transaction takes place (Note 3B).

4. Other revenue

Coraolidated Consaldsed
020 019
4000 £'000
Ket gain on disposad of keased and fised assets 15112 15,246
Nl insurance dainbution revenwe 15,47 16 58}
K PSRN [ eiue 13440 11,654
Dther income 1412 1,561
Total other revenus A, TT0 45,358

Net insurance distribution revenus and net maintenance revemnus are recognised as the related services arg
performed. Net maintenance rewenue represents net income recelved for fadlitating the provision of
maintenance services on fleet contracts. The revenwe is recognised as those services are provided, The company
acts as an agent and as such presents the revenwe recelved net of associated costs in the consolidated staternaent
of comprehensive income, Revenue received in advance of the servioes being provided is presented as a confract
liability wntil such point as the services have been provided. Further information in relation to contract labilities
it presented in Note 24b,
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Results for the year (continued)

5. Depreciation, write-off and amortisation

Conalidatrd Lomabdated
020 2019
S'ooo s'ooo
Profit before income tax includes the Tollowing specific expenses:
Deprocinlion an progerly, plant &g iduipment
Fght-ol.uwe assets B553 .
Leasehald improvements 1S 432
Piand bid Gl prrsesl AL LEIR
Motor vohicles 1,995 1781
‘Write-off on propesty, plant and eguipment 156G '
Total deprediation and write off 1404 4051
Ampriisation
Computer software amartisation 13,548 12,193
Total smertivation 13560 1195
Total depredation, write-off and smortisation 23,111 16,2448

Assots that are subject to depreciation, write-off and amortisation are tested for Impairment whenever svents
or changes in circmstances indicate that the carrying amaunt may not be recoverable. An impainment boss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverabie amount is the higher of an asset’s fir valeg less costs to resell and value inwse, For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouged at the howest levels Tor which there ase separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows rom ather asset groups (cash generating units),

Refer ta Notés 26 i 28 for further infarmation on depieciation, write-off and amartisation.

6. Income tax expense

The ncome tax exponse of credit for the period is the tax payable or recoivable on the current period”s takable
Income based on the applicable Income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temperary differences and 1o unused tax losses

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it &
probabie that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise these temporary differences and fosses.

Deferved tax Rabilities and assets are nob recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases af investrnents in contralied entities where the parent entity is able te control the timing of the

reversal of the temporary differences and it Is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresecable
future.
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Results for the year (continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued)

Coniclidated Comslidated
0r0 2019
000 7000

Currend Lix i k] i 801
Dasler el £ & 555 14634
(Escess i Under provision in prior yesr ja3y 437
Incame s oxpense attributable to continuing aperationd 14,955 58,567
Deferred income tax expense nduded in ircome Lax expense Compries
Increasef|Dooreass) in delened tax assets o842 {2EZR)
Increase in dederred tax Nakslities (15997 (1908}
Decreaie in daferred Lax assets crodited to squily . 7336

{4,555) [15.654)
Humerical reconciliation of moome fa snpenss to prima facke tan payahle
Praofit #rom condinging operations before income tan experae LR ] LSRG
Prima tacis tao payabie f 300 6, 7R9 E1.058
Tax effect of amcuwnis which ang not dodudible (caaabie) in cilculsting Taable imcoma:
thare of nei profi of assocate {3,346} [FEETH
Sandiy ey 1,555 15

4,938 59,135
{Elﬂilﬂundﬂﬂ'aﬂlmlﬂ PFiOn yeas Rl 437
Income tax expense attribatable to continuing operations 14,055 50,567

Deferred tax assets and liabilitses are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and Nabilties and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
liabilitkes are offset where the consalidated entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends elther to
settle on a net basis, of to realise the asset and sattle the liability simultaneously.

Currgnt and deferred tax is recognised in profit or boss, except to the extent that it relates o items recognised
In other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax s also recognised in other
comprehensive income ar directly in equity, respectively,

Tax consalidation legislation

The company and its wholly owned Australion controlied entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation from 1 Apsil 2003 in assediatien with other Australian incorporated entities with comman ownership,

On adoption of the income tax consolidation legslation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group
entered inte an income Lax sharing agresment which, in the apinion of the directors, limits the joint and several
liability for income tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Mator
Carparation Australia Limited.

A3 @ consequence, the company is no longer subject 1o incame tax and does not recognise any curment Tax
balances in its own financial Statements unless the head entity (Toyota Moter Corperation Australia Limited] s

In default of its obligations, or a default s probable, under the tax consodidation legislation, or the tax amouwnts
relate to taxable income incurned prior to the implementation of the tax conolidation regime.
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Results for the year (continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued)
Tax consolidation legislation [continwed)

The consalidated entity has also entered Into an income tax funding agreement under which the consolidated
entity fully compensates the head entity for any current income Lax payable amurmed and iy compensated by
the head entity for any current income tas recelvable. The funding amounts are determined by reference to the
amounts recognised in the consalidated entity's financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement i due upon receipt of the funding
adwice from the head entity, which ks lssued as spon as practicable after the end of each financial year, The head
entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obfigations to pay income tax
Instalments.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in the conselidated financial statements in accordance with UIG 1053 Tax
Consalidation Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax funding agreement with the head entity

are recognised In accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable
and payable.
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Results for the year (continued)

7. Segment results

Managensent has determined the aperating segrents based on reports reviewed by the board of directors that
are used to make strategic decisions. It categorises the operations of the business into two main business
strearms = Retall and Fleet. Retall segment comprised of loans and leases to consumer and commercial custamers
including whalesale finance consisting of loans and bailment facilitses ko motor wehicle dealerships, Fleet
segment cormprised of laans and leases to small businesses and fleet customers consisting of medium to large
commercial clients and povernment bodies. The company™s budiness segments opérate in Australia.

2020
Consolidated Retsd Fleany Unallocated Tartal
£'000 £'000 000 $000
et financing revenue [eciuding fee income) 265,382 E0,562 157,062 4H3.405
Foe incoma
Few income recognised aver a period of time b 457 11233 E 3T Fio
Fee income recognised at a poind in tame 4,995 FED §17) L9009
Dabey Fiieiie
Cher revenue recopnided Bt & point &n time 12084 14,956 1618 30658
Met gain on dispasal of leased snd fived ssety - 16,118 ([ 16,112
Net cperating income 30&,948 108, 190 160 EST 573,795
Total reparting ieiment oiecating loa A543} [11595) - 84137
2019
Consalidated Retall Fleet Unallocated Tatal
£'00a L'oa0 5'000 5000
Net financing revenie (esckiding fee income) ME.611 LA E B3.059 IRE. 70T
Fee income
Feo Income recognised aver a period of time 24178 9835 34113
Few income recognised at & polnd s time 4,626 2K = 5378
Cabetr revirvae
Orther fesenue recognised St & point in time 16,654 13,216 137 30,107
Mot gain on dispasal of leased and fised 23sets . 14 566 280 15245
et cperaling income 202,134 95,936 #3576 AT1 641
Total reporting segment operating profit 113,052 33120 . 186,171
31 March 2020
Assets Retall Fleet Unallocated Total
£'000 S'000 5'000 5000
Segment ety 16,023,783 3,578,974 3,634,741 23 237 498
31 March 2015
Asos Retad Fleat Unalkocaed Tatal
£'000 5000 5'000 5000
Segment wiets 15,304 832 3,1E5,E66 1871817 20362215

The company’s labilities are primarily related to debt funding which are undertaken by the centralised treasury
function,
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Results for the year (continued)

7. Segment results (continued)

The consalidated entity’s segment operating profit recenciles to consolidated profit attributable to awners as
presanted in tha financial statement as follows:

Consolidated Consoldated

2020 1019

5000 5000
Togal reponing segmens operating (oss]/profit (44.137] 156,171
Share of net profit of equity actounted investment 11,153 BASS
Fair walue gain EEREL] 1,360
Dahaty wnallecated net ircome 23.040 47,538
Profit before income tas HE0h 1526
Incomi tax exponsg [74.555] {55,567
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 64,340 143,959

Dperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chied
operating decislon maker, The chief operating dectsien maker whao is responsible for allocating resowrces and
nssessing performance of the aperating segmentd has been identified s the baard of directors

Effective 1 April 2018, it has been decided to discentinue the allocation of the copital benefit 1o the business
segments, as capital management |s a centralised function,
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Lending

This section foouses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further information ic provided on the
loans and receivables, and impairment relating to these financing assets,

8. Financing assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Hete 5000 '000

[a] Loans and receivables
Ballment stock 2.963,845 2,814 458
Term koans 15,084,470 14,378,808
Teifm purchase 605,770 655,749
Finance loases a14 450 745856
Grosgs koans and receivables 19,574 544 18 548 8G9
Unvearred income — DL80069) _{13a8.357)
Nt loans mnd receivables (net of uneasmed incame) 15,294,475 17200082
Provaion lof impatsrment al loans and recepvables Ga 1259, 1%0) 1124 DEa)
Mt loans and recelvables 18,035,325 17,076,012
Mlatusity anabyiis [net of unearmed ingeme )
Current
Met loans and recefvables matunng within 12 months TRAE 4G5 B, 733 BiE
Won-Currend
Mt leans and recehvabiles matiaiag bevoad 12 mambis 10,906,010 1D AGT. 196

18,294,475 17 200012

Tha minimum lease payments recervable on finance keases of vehicles are as follows;

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
57000 000

Fullisng minimum leade rectipts under Ananes aies
Matusing within 1 year ZR2ETT ¥24,280
Mlaturing between 1 and 2 years 141,164 196 862
Maturing between 2 and 3 years 191,616 157,273
Mlatusing hetwesn 3 ard 4 years 135,24 111226
Matuding betwesn 4 and 5 ysar 45,741 42,907
Maturing beyond 5 years 16,853 17,308

914,450 749,856
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Lending (continued)
8. Financing assets (continued)
Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidoted entity’s loans and recevables are provided to finance the purchase of mator
vehicles of motar dealership assets.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Ll 5’000 4'000

(&) Mator vehicles under operating lease
AL Eoat 2435078 2,182,013
Frovssion for residual valse imparment loss 14 |R7, 250 {35 B8R0}
Aoumulalmd depreciaticn (A0 3Ba) 737 648}
Total motor wehicles under operating leate 1,567 432 1,414 487
Futune minimum lease receipts under operating loases
Matusing within I year 136,576 16880
Mlaturing between 1 and 2 years 3027 181,645
Maturing between 2 ard 3 years 135 258 121,203
Maturing betwoen 3 and 4 years B5,100 56,929
Klatusing between 4 and 5 years 30,133 221651
Flaturing beyond & years 16526 11,178

763,716 EB2ATE
Morvemens in coul, sctumulited depreciation and e
Balange &t the beginning of period, net of residual value 1414487 135387
Additions 761,743 TO1458
[Espantaly (257 410) 1233,3%2)
D preciation expinse {324 00 R) 1290, 6F6H
Impairment loss |27 A7) {16462
Balance at end of period, net of residual value 1,567 43 1414 487

Recognition and derecognition

Finanting assets are recognised on transaction settlerment date — the date on which the consolidated entity
becomes party to an Frevocable financing arrangement. Financing assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assots not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
tramsferred and the consalidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershig.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification

Loans and receivables are clasified a1 amorised cost based on the following factors:

s Their contractual terms give rise 1o cash fiows on specified dates, that represent solely payments af
principal and interest {*5FM7) on the principal amount outstanding; and

®  They are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding them to collect contractual
cash flows,

SPPL: For the purpose of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration tar the time value of money and for the credit risk assoclated

with the principal amaunt outstanding during o particular period of tme and for other basic lending risks and
costs |o.g. liguidity risk and administrative costs), a5 well as profit margin.
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement |continued)

Classification (continuwed)

Business madel: Factors considered by the consolidated entity In determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asiets
performance b5 evaluated and reported 1o key management persannel and how risks are assessed and managed.
The consolidated entity classifies its financing assets into the following categories:

{1} Ballmant stock

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers under which vehicles
are owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premises as bailment stock, There i no unearmsed
Income on bailment stock

Whilst the legal form of the transactions is that the vehidies are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance
aof the transactions & that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances ore disclosed as part of
‘lgans and receivables” in the statement of financial position,

[ii} Term Loans

A term loan is a financing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially tranifer the risk and

rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer, Unearned finance income Is the portion of
charges written into finande recaivable agresments which will be earned in the futurne.

[ifi) Leased assets where the consalidated entity is the lessar

fa) Term Purchpss

Acterm purchase is a lease agreement in which the 1erms of the agreement substantially wransfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance Income is the portion of charges
written into lerm purchase receivable agreements which will e earmed in the Tuture.

(B} Fingnce Lease

A finance [ease is a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessor 1o the lessee. Uneamaed finance income & the
portion of charges writhen into finance receivable agreements which will be earned in the future,

fe] Dperating Lease

Maotar vehicles under operating leases are incheded in finandng assets. These ane leases in which the terms of
the lease agreement do not substantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 1o

thie lessee.

Maotar vehicles under operating lease is inchusive of the carrying value of vehicles which ceased to be rented and
are held for sale amounting to 517.7 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: 531.6 million).

Assets hefd under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its
estmated residual value. Depreclation expense is included within financing expence and similar charges,
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement |continued)
Subsequent measurement

Loans and recewvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
mathod calculation includes the contractual terms of the [oan, together with all fees and transaction costs,

Retail amel wholeiale finance receivables form part of the loans and receivables in the bakance sheet,
Unearned Income is brought ta accownt over the [ife of the contracts on an effective Interest method.

Madification

The consofidated entity sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to

customers, When this happens, the consolidated entity assesses whether or not the new terms ane substantially

different to the original terms by considering. among others, the following factors:

» [T the barrower i in financial difficulty, whether the medification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower i expected to be able to pay.

= Significant change of the loan term and/ar interest rates when the borrower is not in financiol difficulty.

* Insertion of coblateral, other security or cfedit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the laan,

If the terms ane substantially difforent, the consolidated entity derecognises the eriginal financial asset and

recognises a new assets at fair value and recalculates o new effective interest rate for the asset. If the terms are
not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition.

Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidated entity’s loans and recefvables are provided to finance the purchase or lease of
maoter vehicles or motor dealership assets.

Unearned income comprised of the following balances:

31 March 220 31 Msch 2010
s'no0 5'000
Mt ufiamadtised delented fivivius aid agemnis EEERE ] 314,503
Unearnisd mierest istoms on finance eases 51536 50.0F6
Unearned mterest income on ferm loans. 1,540,365 1,613 804
Total unemingd intame 120,060 1348857

Securitisation

Loans and receivables include a portion of the consolidated entity’s term loans and torm purchases wnder
securitisation within special purpose entities. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria
for derecognition under AASE % and are therefore recognised on the consolidated entity™s statement of financial
positlon, AASEB 10 defines control when an investor is esposed or has rights to variable returns from its
iryolverment with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investes,
The parent entity bears control over the spedal purpose vehicles requiring consolidation In the financial
statements.

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of transferred assets held by the special purpose
entities under securitisation was 53,8272 million [2019: 54,1024 million).
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consolifned  Corodidated

020 pi-il )
000 000
{al Presshion for cresit impalrment of loem and rese ivables
Dpening balisee 134,000 e
Change in scouling policy = 24,1055
Revtated balanes s 1 Aael 2003 114,000 110462
B dheibits writLen ol [TrA4aT} 157 . B09)
Facreare b Imparmant s prosisioes 312937 BE 347
Closing balance * 53,150 H2d,000
(b] Credd impakment lms
e oy o hid de b weittee alf [15A70) [ILSSH ]
Incrpaie © impairmen], s prenies J1r097 i T
Total impairmest ki 167,127 A45,008
e} Hon-credt impaiement ks on motor vehicles under cperating leaae
Tpen g balance ¥3.380 23418
Brcrgaie o ImpaEmant Kl prosisioen ITAT0 07
s ing balance Lr250 19.58

* The balance as ot 31 March 2000 inchudes provivian on guarenieed future value of $10.4 milian (2019 $8.0 milkon] which i ret
caliuiated uncer ARSE 5.

The contractual amount cutstanding on financlal assets that were written off during the year ended 31 March
2020 and that are still subject to enforcement activity Is $73.5 miltion [2019: $53.8 millian),

In additian to the infarmation below Turther infermation an eredit risk can be faund in Naote 20.

The bass allowanice recognised in the period isimpacted by a variety of factors, 04 described below:

®  Translers between Stage §and Stages 2 or 3 due ta financial instruments experencing significant intreases
[or decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit impakred in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or
“step down™) between 12 manth and lifetime expected crodit losses {“ECL");

= Additional allowances for new linancial instrurments recognised during the period, a5 well a5 releases for
financial Instruments derecognised In the period;

*  Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in probability of default ["PD7), exposere at default
[“EAD") and loss given delault {*LGD") in the period, arising from regulas refreshing of inputs to models;

»  Diseount unwind within ECL due ta the passage of time, 8% ECL s measured on 3 present value basis;

= Financial assets derecognised during the periad and write-alfs of allowances related to assets that were
written off during the period;

*  Takes into consideration the ec lic condition outlook that reflects the impact of the COVID-19
pandermic.
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Lending (continued)
9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

The fallowing tables explain the changes in the koss aowance between the beginning and the end of the anmeal
period dus to these factors:

General approach [Retail & Wholesale]

Lifetima ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit- cresdit-
Lt menth ECL impaired impaired Tatsl
Comolidated 2000 000 4000 000 S'o0n
DOpening balance at 1 Apeil 2009 [ciloulaed urder AASES) 40,596 a0173 18,931 101,000
Changes duse to Amancis! 35y recopnised in the opening balanoe:
~Transfers between stages 317 |1, 528y {1,128} -
-Rempasuroment 34 068 17,946 76,008 138,921
Changes in madel ssumplions snd methodolagie n B9 2 934
Fnancisl a5 dorecagnised dufing the porksd other 1B write-ofs |5, 788y |6.195 {3,926) [15,405]
Closirgg ECL of nerw financial ssets orignaed 24,704 18,236 4,745 47,183
Wiride-affs - . (&8,335) 68,3359
Balance at 31 March 2020 97533 79,051 6,718 203,300
Lifetime ECL Lifetine £CL
ned gredil- il
12 mosth ECL impaired impaired Total
Consolidated 2019 s'nco S'ooo %000 'oon
Opening balance ot 1 Apeil 2008 [caloalsted under ARSE ) 18,104 30,937 17,969 7,000
Changes due Eo Fracsisl auusty recopaitied in the apening halesos:
-Transhirs B vt (LAE0E 3150 [2B3TH 13931 B
-REvmpasunemsil |3.290) LAT? 56,718 40,715
Financisl astets derecognised during the perkod athar (b writa-nfy |a.295) 337EN 2,626 [1a,058]
Closing ECL of new finandal assets originated 12,745 131,378 1873 30,096
Wiite-alfs - . (55, 720) [55,720]
Nalance st 31 March 3019 ADAAG 40475 19,901 101,000
23
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

Simplified approach (Fleet]
LEfetime ICL Lifetime ECL
e it enedit-
Impaited mpaired Tatsl
Consolidated 2020 5000 5'000 5000
Opening balsnce 51 1 Apeil 2049 fealculated under AASHE %) L FR ] 2211 15,000
Changes due o irmancisl assets recognised in (e opivng Balance:
T s Betwaen g 189 1283} E
Hermeasunement 11,584 9313 40,907
Changes in model assumptions and methodologies |¥.728) 121} [7,829]
Fingndisl adieti derecoghiied during 1he pesiad alher than wite-alfi FEL LT TLr] (L.485]
Closrg ECL of new fnand il assels onginated 18865 500 19,365
Wre-atts - 1B.508} (R.508]
Balance ai 31 March 3020 33,496 2,954 36,450
Lifetime ECL Lifietime ECL
e credit- eredit-
impaired Enpaired Totsl
Comtolidated 2009 5000 000 000
Opening balence a1 1 April 2008 {caloslated under ARSE 3] 2. ra7? 1,755 24,462
Changes due to firaiecisl aisets recognisond (= the opasing Balance:
~Tranthers Bptwipen 11ages Tl 271} =
Remcasurement (20567) 402 [39,465]
Financisl assets dererognaed during the period other than wie-offs (14345 208} f1.642]
Closing ECL of new finand al axsets oniginated 12112 2,632 14,734
wite-alfs = {2.08%] (F.089)
Balancs &1 31 March 3019 1780 2211 15,000

Retall, wholesale and Fleet recelvabbes are written off when there s no reasonable expectation of recovery of

debt. Indicaters that there is no reasanable expectation of recovery include, but are not Emited to, the following:

»  Failure of the debtor to engage with oF enter into o repayment plan with the company; o

®  Thedebtor has been placed under liquidation; or

«  The debtor has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, and the company determines that the deblor does
niot have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flow to repay the amounts subject
to write-off.,
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amount of recelvables for which provishon ks made are a3 below:

Retail & Wholesale receivables
Litetime CL Lifetime ECL
ot credit- crodit-
12 monih ECL Impained Impased Todal
Comolidated 2000 S'o00 £'000 S0:00 5000
Gross catrying smount a5 a1 1 April HAS 14 639,79 Ti4100 59022 15413832
Changes dus bo irancisl aiLets recognetnd @ (he apening hatine ;
‘Tramsfers befween tiages 304, 756) 152,183 43113
Change in balance [2.308,507T) {102, 1E8| 29,536 [2,181,530)
Ciosimg ECL of new financial assets orignated 5009, 608 151 460 5,790 5,190 864
Tingecisl aisett denecopnited during the perdsd ather than write-olt 1957, 404} TELREH] |03 (2,107 335)
Whirle-alfy e S oA 169.33H 169,339
Balance a1 31 March 2020 1% 390,800 TE6,6AF 60,598 16,2 46483
Uifetine ECL Lifetime ECL
nat credit- credit-
12 month ECL Impaired Impared Total
Comolidated 2019 5000 5000 5000 5000
Groas carmying amoent 24 a1 1 Aprll 3018 13480643 B4 36T 44,128 14,185 138
Changes due to fimanclal assets recognised in the opening batanoe -
«Transfers befween lages L0, T 6,007 44,713 *
-Change In balance (1,721,201} 76, G0 23,352 (1,774 5805
Cloging ECL o ngw finangial Heets of ginatgd 4,862,659 TG0 0738 5045037
Fimarsial assrts derecognived during Uhis peviod other than wrile=olls |1.911,537) [T1.2831 [T.ZRT) (1,900,034
Write-affs - = |35 7200 |55, 730y
Balance at 31 March 2019 14,639,793 14,111 59,922 15413 838

27

153/292



Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)
Fleet receivabiles

Consolidated 2020

Gross carying amount 33 88 1 April 2019

Changes dwe ko francial 2siets necognised in the opening balance
~Trivialers bt weed dLige
Changs in Balance

Closing ECL of new financial assets originated

Financial assets derecognised duzing the perod other than wribe-ofs

Wirte-alfy

Balance at 31 March 1020

Consolidated 2019

Gross catrying amounl 8 8 1 Apcil 2018

Changes diee tn Grandial ave1 recapnised in the apening halanoe |
~Transfers Bef woen stages
“Change in balance:

Closing ECL of new financial assets orignsted

Fingndlal sdsots derecagalied dudlng the pedad other thas write-of

Wirile-alfy

Balance a1 31 March 1019

Significant accounting estimate and judgemaont
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Lifetima ECL Lifgtime ECL

ot exeedil- erwdit-
enpaired ienpaired Totsl
5'000 5000 £'000
1.772.585 15,55% 1.786,180
4,427 4427 .
[341,258) EREL |48,428)
561,267 2,000 553,257
{248, 111) EEET] 348, 543)
- {8,508} {8,508
T040,055 10146 2047592
Lifetima ECL Lifetimne ECL
nod credi- credit:
mpaired mpaired Total
000 000 000
1462220 1,993 LAGS. 213
|5.3364 1336
{286, 528) EES |226,372)
LETHE ] 11,465 SHE IS
3322240 Hito ) 1332 890]
- {2,083} 17 0d%)
1,772,585 11.5%5 L.VEG, 180

Tha consolidated entity assessos, on a forward-looking basis, the ECL sssoclated with its loan and receivabln
paspts carried at amartised cost and motar vehicles under aperating lease and recognises a loss allowance far
such bosses at cach reporting date, The measurement of ECL reflects:
= An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible

outcomes;
& The time valee of money; and

*  Reasonable and supportable information that (s available without undue cost or effort 8t the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future econgmic conditions, in light of potential

Imipacts the current COVID-19 pandemic presents.
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In this section, the focus is on debt funding of the consolidated entity. Further information is prowided an debt

izsuamee and credit facilities available to manage liquidity risk

10. Due to banks and other financial Institutions

31 March 2009
s'oon

5,084,879

5,088,479

2389257

31 March 2020
4'o00
Banks and other finandial institutions 4.57%501
Total due to barks and other financal inatitutions 4,575 501
Maturity analyiis
Cuwrrent
Banks and ather linanail indtifutions 1.93% 406
Now-Corrent
Banks and ather finandial inttiutian .6 36 0415
4,575.501

2,695,627

— .

Includied in the "Due to banks and other financial Institutions” ts securitised dabt of 53,0423 milon as at 31
March 2020 [2019: £3 250,2 rnilliﬁn:l rspresenting the valug of term loans held by external parties in the special
purpose entities. The speclal purpose entitles lssued Interest-beasing notes to third parties amounting to
53,0423 million as a1 31 March 2020 (2019: $3,250.2 million). The company holds the balance af the special
purpase entities of 5784.9 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: $852.1 million]. $3,827.2 million loans and
receivables are pledged as collateral for the senior notes under securitisation as at 31 March 2020 [2019:

54,1023 million].

The Interest payable on the secured nates 5 a1 31 March 2020 amounted to $1.4 millon (2019: 52,8 million]

and is included in *accrued interest payable®.
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Funding (continued)
11, Bonds and commercial paper
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
5000 5'000
Commircis! pagr 4,221.561 4379347
Modius term e 11.914,732 B,776.849
Tatsl Bonds and commarcial pagser 16,136,283 13,106,156
Maturity analyiis
Curveent
Bords and commardial papsr &, 791 BB 5,802,656
Now-Cerrent
Bomds and comvmercial paper 5,544 407 7,303,510
16,136,283 13,106,166

Bonds and commercial paper are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the preceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amaunt i recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds or commaercial
pager using the effective Interest method,

Transaction costs that are directly attributabée to the acquisition or issue of a fimancial liakdlity are Included in
thi initial recagnition of the financial instrurnents.

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other imestment securiies and commercal paper
summarised in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by lapanese law, one
between Toyota Molor Corporation [“TMC™) and Toyota Financial Services Corporation [“TFSC™) dated 14 July
20040, and the other between TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000,

12, Securitisation and transferred assets

In tha narmal course of business, the consolidated enlity enters Into transactions by which it transfers financial
assets to speclal purpose entities. These transfers do not give rise 1o derecognition of those financial assets for
the consalidated entity.

Securitisation

Term loans securitised undes the company™s securilisation programs aré equitably assigned to bankruplcy
remaote special purpose entities. The consolidated entity is entitled 1o any residual income of the securitisation
program after all payments due (o investors have been met, In addition, where derivatives are transacted
between the special purpose entities and the parent, such that the parent retains exposure to the variability in
cash flowes fram the transferred term loans, the loans will continue to be recognised an the parent’'s balance
sheet. The investers have full recourse only to the term loans segregated into the special purpose entities,

, Ndatad . lidated
2020 aoed
5000 £'000
Carryirg amount of transferred asies IETAT 4,107,374
Carrying amount of aszociated Hablfies 3043 346 3,250,254
et poslthon for carrying amount TH4 525 BS2,120
Fair value of fransferred assets 4,148 304 4,469 Y14
Fair vahie ol srociated lahildes 2068 B2 3278 A1
et position for fair walue smoant 1,077 6BG 1,191,363
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Funding |continued)
13, Credit facilities
Coralidated Comaolidated
2000 2013
5004 5'000

Armourd available:

Bondt, comm e clal paper, 1erm lcans and other shodt Lo borrowings 33977438 31,624,742
Bank overdraft 15 000 4 000
Sevuaritisabian

<Gt Botie 4,590 000 4,080,000

Mezzaning Mote 1,250,000 L, 120,000
iamiount utilised:

Bondy, commanclal paper, term loans and odker shot teem bonrowings 17,740 565 15,004 163
Bank overdraft .

Seconitisation

<Gt Moty 1043346 3,250,754
-Mpzzaning Note TEL 325 852,130
Amourd net wilised:

Bonds, comm ol paper, term loans and other shost berm bormowings * 16,235,873 16,620,580
Bank overdraft 15,0000 4,000
Setwritisatian

<R Mo 1,547,654 835,746

Mpzzaning Mote 415075 267 2B

* Dug 19 2 compuational error, the Taclity amount ava®able for “bonds. commenciad paper, term boans and ofher short term
borrowingi™ for the year ended 31 March 2010 were overstated by 51,03 bilkan, it has been cormected by restafing he aliected kne
Itawi o prias yaar. ek ervoe did nos stfect the Habdices preested b ehe consnldated P ol ferancial g

Medium term note, commercial paper programs, term loans and other short term borrowings.

Medium term note and commedcial paper programs allow the company to ssue medium term notes and
commercial paper in either Austrafian or overieas markets up 1o a tatal of $27.08 bilkon [2009: $24.77 billion).

The company has sccedss to 51.97 billion of uncommitted facilities (2019: $3.17 billien] and $0.4 billion of
committed facilities {201%; 50.3 billion] from varicus banks. The company also has a 51.64 billion facllity avallable
with Toyata Motos Credit Corporation [2019: 51.41 billian] and a $2.E9 billion facility available as part of Toyata
Group Master Credit Facility (2009; 5$1.97 billion] a5 at 31 March 2030,

Credit support agreement

Holders of debt securities sued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed

by lapaniese law, one between TMWC and TFSC dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the cam pany
dated 7 August 2000 (together, the “Crodit Suppart Agreements™),
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Funding (continued)
13, Credit facilities (continued)
Credit support agreement (continued)

Holders of such securities will have the right to claim directly against TFSC and TWC to perform theair respective
obligations under the Credit Support Agreements by making a written claim together with a declaration to the
effact that the holder will have recourse to rights glven under the Credit Suppert Agreements. If TFSC andfor
TMC receive such a claim from any haolder of such securities, TFSC and/for TMC shall indemnify, without any
further action or formality, the holder against any loss or damage resulting from the fallure of TFSC andfor THMC
to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreements. The holder of such
secufities who made the claim may then enforce the Indemnity directly agalnst TFSC and/for TMC.

In consideraticon for the Credit Suppoct Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into bobwesn
TFSC and the company a3 at 30 March 2001, The Credit Support Fee Agreement pravides that the company will
pay to TFSC a fee cquivalent to a percentage of the weighted average outstanding amount of the company’s
madium term notes and commereal paper that hove the benefit of the Credit Support Agreements.

The directors are nol aware of any instances of & written claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit
Support Agreemaents, in connection with thie company’s outstanding medium term notes and commercial paper,

Master credit facility | "MEF*)

264 Day Credit Agreement, Thiee Year Credit Agreement and Five Vear Credit Agreement

The MCF between the company and othes Toyata affiliates was rénegotiated in November 2019 where a US55.0
billign 364-day syndicated bank credit facility, a W555.0 billion three year syndicated bank credit facillity and a

L5550 billion five year syndicated bank credit facility, expiring in Movember 2020, 2022, and 2024, respectively,
were renewed.

The ability to make drawdowns s subject to covenants and conditions customary In transactions of this natura,
Including negative pledge provisions, cross-default provisions and limétations on certain cansolidations, mergers
and sales of assets. Thase agreements may be used for general corporate purposas and mone was drawm upon
a4 at 31 March 2020. The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions af the credit agresments
described above,

Bank overdraft

Thar bank overdraft is an unsecured 5150 million facility as at 31 March 2020 [201%; 54.0 millian), Interest is
charged at provailing market rates. The bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review,
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Capital management

This section covers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.
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14, Contributed equity
¢ PP
020
5000
Ordinary thares fully paid 130,600

A1 31 March 2020 there were 120,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid.

01
£'000

120,000

Ordinary shares entitle the holder 1o participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the consalidated

entity in proportion o the aumber of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands, every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy Is entitled to

one vote and, upen a poll, cach share i entithed 1o one vote.

019
£'000

527
1,53%

15, Reserves
Contoldated
2020
$'o00
Foreign cuemency translation reserve
Balanice 3t 1 Apid B.B09
Mot exchange differences on translation of foreign assocate entity 1,667
Balance at 31 March BATE

6,205

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on transiation of investments accounted for using the equity method s taken o
the forelgn currency translation reserve. The reserve is subsequently recognised in profit and loss when the net

imvstment is disposed of,
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Capital management (continued)

16, Retained earnings

Opening balance
Chisnge in acountsg palicy
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Restated balance at 1 Agpril 2018

Prafit attributable (o owners of the parent

Total available for approgriation Eo owners of the parent
Dhvitends padd

Balance at the end of the pericd

Diwidends
Fulby-Tramkmi final dividend foe the year ended 31 March 2020 of rl
ety

Total dividends paid

e
2018
$'000
1,371,336 1,382,830
P 16,54
1,371,326 1,269,404
64,390 143,053
1,455 666 1.413,363
‘ 42,037}
1,435,666 1.371,326
: 42,037
: 42,037

Under the income tax consolidation regime, the franking account balance of the comgany as at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred to the head entity of the consolidated tax growp. The company ceases to have a

franking acoount during the time it remains a member of the consolidated growp.

The Income tax consolidation rules do permit the cormparny 1o pay a franked dvidend to its shareholder with the
head entity's franking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend, Dividends

paid during the year ended 31 March 2019 were fully franked.
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Financial instruments and risk

This section covers the financial instruments held by the consolidated entity including derivative and non-
derivative finantial instruments and finantial risk management information.

17. Derivative financlal Instruments

Consolidatod Consplidatod
pLor ] 2019
000 5000
Anzets
Intaesit ratir Swap Contracts FA,594 30,963
Cross currency swan comiracty 1,207 576 205,449
Foeward foreign sxchange contracts 162,058 22,032
Dervative financial irstrement asiets 1468 228 278 444
Less: Bilatewal credin valuation adjusiment [5.857) _|saT)
Total deviwative financial instrsment assets - measuned at fair value 1462371 T
Liabilities
IPtEnest ratie SWAD CORICES 211,025 110,097
Cross currency saap coniracts 340 2113
Fosward foreign eschange contracts - 9,211
Total devivative finandal insgrament Babilities - measured at fair value 211415 143,422
Current derfvotive fimanciol instr
Derivative fnancial assets 397,734 116,713
Derivathve fnandal llablties 0566 M EET
Narn-current derivetive financial instruments
Dertvative financial assets LOG4E3T 161,064
Derivative fnancial liabdlie 180,449 122.55%

Measurement

The comialidated entity uses derivatives not designated in a qualitying hedging relationship, to manage its
exposure o foreign currency and Interest rate risks. Derivative financial assets and llabilities are inftially
recognised at fair valee on the date a derivative cantract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured fo
their falr value at the end of each reporting pericd. The derivatives have net been designated as hedging
instruments conseguently, changes in the fair valee of derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or loss
as interest expense and simikar charges. This may, to the extent that they are not offset by the translation of the
iterns economically hedged, introdwees valatility in the consalidated entity"s prafit or loss and produce anomalows
results,

Falr value estimation
Tha fair value of the fimancial instruments that ame not traded inan active market {over-the-counter derivatives]
is determined using valuation technigues. The fair value of interest rate swaps and oross curfency Swaps s

caloulated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The fair value of foreign exchange contracts
is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
17. Derivative financial instruments {continued)

Bilateral eredit valuation adjustments

Tha credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the fair value of the derivative instroments to account for
the counterparty credit risk [(“CCR™), It s the credit spreads of both the group and the counterparty, tagether
with market factors, that drive the bilateral credit valuation adjustments.

Accounting estimates

The consolidated entity applies accounting esthmates and assumiptions to make reasonable judgements on
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Ompe ares that imvoles some level of estimates or complesity of
assumptions is derivathee financial instruments,

Fair value higrarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair valees, by valuation method. The different levels
are defined a4 follows:

Level 1: guoted prices {unadpusted) In sctive markets for identical assets or liabilites

Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within leved 1 that are abservable for the asset or Rabilty,
either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly {l.e. derived from prices)

Lovel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

The consolidated entity"s finandial instruments that are measured and recognised at Fair value ane derivative
assets and derivative Nabilities used for hedging [Le. interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward
exchange contracts). While these instruments are used for ecanamic hedging, the consolidated entity does not
aply hedge accounting,

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 Lawid 1 Leval 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
$o00 $'000 $000 000
Derivative financlal assets
through profit or loss
Derivaives uied or eoonamic hedging
Fareign eschange contracts - 162,058 . 162,058
Interest rabe swaps = 03 504 . 0@ 504
Crrgss Cumency swaps 1207578 . 207578
Less: Bilpeal OVA - 58571 - {5.857)
Total financisd siseti - 1462371 - LAGLITL
Derivative financial labilities
theough profil of lois
Dhetlvadivies wsed for econamic hedging
Forelgn exchange contracts . ]
Interest rate swaps . 111,035 . 311,02%
CrOss CTEnCY Fwaps . 390 : 390
Totnl fnandsl Rabilnie = 211 415 - 211415
36
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments |continued)
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Fair value hierarchy [continued)
AS AT ¥1 MARCH 2019 L 1 Revel 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
5000 Soad 5000 4'000

Dwrivatbae financial assets

through profit or loss

Derkvatives uted for econamic hedging
Fareign eschange contracts 22032 22032
Interest rabe swaps 50,963 50,963
Crgss CUmency Swaps 5449 05449
Less: Bilpernal OVA 16ET [G6ETH

Total finandial anets 377,197 3

Dierivatie finarscial labilities

through profit or loss

Derivatives used for coonomic hedging
Farelgn exchange contracts 9212 - e d ]
Interest rate wwaps 110,097 110,0%7
oS Cummency Swapd 14,113 14,113

Total financial Babilties 143 423 143423

18. Non-derivative financlal instruments

Fair value measuremants

The fair value of financial assets and Gnancial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or
for dischosure purposes. Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for financial

instrurmenis.

The table belaw summarises the carmying amaunts and the fair values of those financial assets and Babifties not
presented on the consolidated entity™s balance sheet at fair value,

Consclidated 2020 Consolidated 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
armain vtk MU varlug
000 S'oon S000 s000
Financlal msets
Loans and receivables 15,600 757 31,084 661 18,450,499 2028983
Finanisl lishilities
Due to banks and other financlal institutions 4,575,501 46159460 S0888T 5133473
Boncs and commercial paper 16,136,283 16509007 13,106,166 13,364 318
20,711,784 21,228,527 18,151,045 18497791

Tha carrying amaunts of cash and cash equivalents, trade recervabies and payables are assemed to approximate
their Tair values due o their shert term nature. The fair value of the laans and recaivables i estimated at
portfolio level by discounting the contractual cash flows wsing current lending rates, The falr valuee of financial
lizbilithes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market inledest rate that
Is awvallable to the consalidated entity for similar financial instruments, The fair value of current barmowings

approaimates the carmying amaunt, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

a
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
19, Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities

Financial assets and liabiities are offset and the net amount reported bn the statement of finandal position
where the consolidated entity currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there s intention to settle on a net basis or realse the asset and settle the liabdity simuftaneously. The
consalidated entity has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of default.

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2020, The calumn net amowsnt’ shows the impact
on the consalidated entity’s statement of financial posithon if set-off rights were exercised.

Effects of cifyetting on the

staiement of financisl posdtion Relabesd amounts not offset
G Met amounts Amaoums
Ry S0 presented in b bo
& i B thi AW EmEn [ ey
Grens ustgmant ol of financial nEtting Cnh

amourly financial potitien srangements Cellazeral el senoram
EL 000 000 5000 000 $000 7000
Fingrcial susely
Cash ard cavh equivalents {b) 1937578 1537876 1537976
Loans and receivabies 18,035,335 " 18,035,325 : . 18,035,325
Dertvative Enansial istnaments [b) LAG2ATY . 1,462,371 19,739 1235,400] 1.017,232
Db it 18] ATE58 180,753} 18,507 : - 6,007
Total 1 AE, 330 10,751} T1AT2579 | 108,739 [ 235 400) 21,027,480
Finmncial lakiiies
Due to bankt and other financial instiutions (b 4,475.501 - A578.501 : 579,501
Derivative Ainancial instnamenss |bj s - 1015 |3005,73%) . LETE
Oaher Habilizies [a] 616,382 (U751 05,631 : {235 400] 370,231
Total 5,403,158 110,758} 5,392,547 109,739 [235,400] 4,547,408
0w
Finarcial sysety
Cash pred cavh equiwalenty {b] LA16 800 - 1A 600 . - 1,878,600
Loans and recehvabiles 17,076,012 17,078,002 17,076,012
Derivatie Bnancial imatnamenes |bj 77,7 | I [IRET:ET] |25 0oa) 123,704
Cxher ety (a] 78,553 121,881} 56,732 : ] 35,832
Total 18.B4B BET (2861} _ 18237124 115.073) |81500) _ 1856151
Vinmecial lisksiiniey
e to banks and other financal institutions (b 508887 . 084 57 : . 004 H7Y
Dervative fnancal instraments [b) 143422 143,422 [FRET-EE]] |16 =00 2,551}
Other Hahikzies [a] 555,112 21,861 443,261 . |75 000 418,761
Total 5593423 (21,861} 5,671,562 (1L18.873) |41,500) 5,500,589
[a} Offsetting arrangements
Other assets and liabilities

On the wholesale deaber statements, monthly financing and other receivables from dealerships are offset against
manthly commisskons and other payables to dealerships. The amounts are settied and presented net in the
statement of financial position.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

[b) Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements = not currently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties are covered by ISDA agreements; term loans and cash deposits are
covered by standard agreements, Under the terms of these arrangements, upon an event of default, 3 ratings
downgrade to a certain level or an early termination event, the net amount owing to, or receivable from, a
counterparty in the same currency will be taken as dug and the arrangerment will be terminated, Since no such
event subsists and the consedidated entity has no other legally enforceable right of set-off, these amounts have
not been set off in the statement of financial position but have been presented separately in the table above,
Collateral may be posted daily In respect of certaln derivatives transacted with any counterparty covered by a
Credit Suppart Annex for Variation Margin agreements.

20, Financial risk management

The consalidated entity’s activities expase it to 8 variety of finaneial risks: market rigk (including eurrency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and residual vabue risk, The consolidated entity’s overall risk
management program focuses an the unpredictability of financial markets and used vehicle markets and seeks
to manage potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the consolidated antity.

The consolidated entity does not enter Into or trade finandial instruments, including derivative financial
instrurments, for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the consolidated
entity’s suposure o currency risk and interest rate risk. The residual value risk of the consolidated entity arises
mainly from receivables under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future value,

Risk management Is carried out by various committees and departments based on charters apgroved by the
senior managerent in accordande with the company's Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include:

Enterprise Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management process |s estabiished with the purpose of driving an appropriate risk culture across
the enterprise and enabling the organisathon 1o achieve its business goals. This function is discharged by the
Senior Executive Team ("SET™).

Pricing Committes

Tha Pricing Committes meats to actively assess new business marging in connection with volumae and interest
rate requirements, and a changing interest rate and competitar envdronment.

Asset and Liability Committes

The Asset and Liability Commitiee meets to proactlvely and collaboratively manage and monltor the interest
rate and lquidity risks of the consalidoted entity,

The consolidated entity’s treasury department identifies, evaluastes and hedges financial risks. The treasury
department implements the conselidated entity’s policies e manage the consolidated entity’s foreign currency
risk, imterest rate risk, guesdity risk and credit risk with banks and other financial intermediaries.

Retail Credit Risk Commitiee

The Retadl Credit Risk Committes i responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection,

enforcoment and write-off of monies lent by the company to retail custemers, The committee ensures that the
core credit operations of the company are aligned with the corparate goals and ebjectives.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management [continued)

Commercial Credit Risk Committes

The Commercial Credit Risk Committoe is responsiblie for the risk assessment, ongoing management. collection,
enfercerment and write-aff of monies lent by the company to commerdal customers. The commitiee ensures
that the core credit operatsens of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives.

Residual Value Committes

The Residual Valve Committee undertakes to measure and assess residual values on assets based on best
practice and eritical variable infarmation such as used car market dynamics, econamic conditions, governmental
policiesfregulations, the credit market and the conditions of assets under lease/with guaranteed future value,
It reparts all matters with potential impact on residual value of assets and all other matters which would mitigate
petential residual value risks to the consolidated entity,

Audit Committee

Thae Audit Committes is tasked to assist the Board of Directors of the company and managemant in the exercise
of its oversight responsibllities over the systems of internal control, Internal audit actiities and ensuring a
constant communication amongst the Audit Committes, management, eaternal audit and internal audit.
Compliance Committes

The Compliance Committee is responsible for the establishment, publication and maintenance of the
complance framework to manage the consolidated entity’s compliance with all the laws, regulations and codes
ol practice that apply to the business and the maintenance of the company’s ACL and AFS Licenies.

Internal Awdit

The intermal audit department provides independent, objective assurance and consulting activities designed to
add value and improve the conselidated entity's operations. It assists managamant in identifying and mitigating
risks, and recognising kalzen opportunities through its review of business procesies, systems, controls,
emvironment and activities,

Product Committes

Thet Product Committes is established to review new and existing products and services including the
development of the company's market place strategy for product and service development and roadmap
considerations,

[a) Market risk

[i] Foreign exchange risk

The consalidated entity operates in international eapital markets to abtain debt funding b suppart its earming
assets. Transactions may be denominated In forelgn currencles, exposing the consolidated entity to forelgn
exchange risk arising from various currency exposunes.

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and Habilities denominated in currenty that is not the
consolidated entity’s functional currency and net investments In foreign operations. The risk is measured using
debt maturity anabysis.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management [continued)

[a) Market risk (continued)
{11 Forelgn exchange risk [continued]

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its forelgn exchange risk against

its functional currency. The consolidated entity is required to economically hedge 100% of its foreign exchange

risk at the time of debt isswances. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consalidated entity

to hedge its exposure 10 fﬂ'E"l‘l currency risk, including:

= Forward exchange contracts to hedge the feseign currency risk arising on the issue of commercial paper in
foreign currencies and affilisted entity loan; and

*  Cross currency swaps to manage the foreign curmency and interest rate risk associated with foreign
currency denominated medium term notes, bank loans and US commerncinl paper,

The consolidated entity’s net exposure to fareign currency risk at the end of the reporting period ended 31
March 2020 is immaterial, There has been no change in this position whn compared ta the reporting period
ended 31 March 2019,

[li} Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuste beeause of changes in market interest rates, The consolidated entity & exposed to the effects of

fluctuations In the prevading levels of market interest rates as It borrows and lends funds at both floating and
fimed interest rates, Derivative linancial instruments are entéred into by the consalidated entity b0 economically
hedge its exposure to cash fow and falr value interest rate risk, Including:

*  Figed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
earning assets. Such intenest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and receivables from
fised rates to floating rates;

L Fized-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity’s
functional currency denominated fixed rate medium term notes and bank loans. Swch interest rate swaps
hawe the economic effect of converting borrowings from fiked rates to floating rates; and

®  Cross curroncy swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with Foreign
currency denominated medium term notes, US commercial paper and bank loans. Such eross currency
swiaps have the econemic effect of converting boerrowings frem foreign denominated fixed or floating rates
to functional currency floating rates.

Under the Interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified
Intervals imainly quarterly], the difference between ficed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts
caboulated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts, Under the cress currency swaps, the
consodidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foraign currancy principal and
fiwed {or floating) rate interest amounts, and functional currency principad and floating rate interest amownts
calcutated with reference to the agreed functional currency principal amount.

The cansolidated entity’s policy i to maintain most of its debt expoiune in its functional currency at floating
rate, using Interest rate swaps of cross ourrency swaps to achieve this when necessary.

The following tabbe detalls the consolidated entity's exposure to Interest rate risk as at the end of the reparting
period.

41

167/292



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
ooOooood

Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Finandal risk management [continued)
(a) Market risk (eontinued)

[it} Cash flow and falr value interest rate risk [continued)

Vasfable Fined Mo
Interest Intenest Interest
Rata Rat# Baatring Total

Consolidated 2020 5000 7000 $'000 5'000
Operating lease recehvables 1,634 682 - 1,634 682
Financlal assets
Cash and ligd assets 1,937,976 - - 1937976
Loans and recetvables 4470214 13,4248 261 . 18,284 47%
INtErest Fte saaps 10,980,000 [ 90,930 D) . e
Daheer assets - - 36,907 38907
Total inancisl assets 17,768,190 4,078,943 36,207 21,904,040
Finarclal labilities
Bards. and other Brancil instinutions 4,575,501 . - 4,575,501
Commercial papers 4,221,561 - - 4,321,561
Medium term notes 624,702 11,290,020 . 11,914,722
Cross currendy swaps 6,120,840 (6,120,840
Inferest Fake Saaps 4,333,496 {4,323, 486) - -
Dtk liabililie 235,400 . 370,231 605,631
Lease babikities . 45 0BF . 5,087
Total financiad bk 20,101,500 890,771 370231 21.361.502
Net financial asse b/ [Babilities) [2,315,310)] 3188472 | (333,324} §41,518

Vasiable Fixed Mo

Intarest Enganiss Int@nest

Rate Rate Bearing Total
Consolidated 2013 5000 §°000 $'000 $'000
Diparating loase rocs hablas - 1,454,367 . 1454367
Financial assets
Cazh and ligud assets 1,414,603 . . 1,418,603
Laans and receivables 4475417 12,734,595 - 17200082
IRrEdt Fake Swapd 11,070,000 (41,070, (00) - -
Dtheer assets 1,900 . 39,837 56,733
Total financiad assets 16,578,530 A, 1085952 29,837 20,127,714
Financial liabilities
Bards and ather Bnanclal instifutions T08a 8Ty . . 5084 B7TS
Commarcial papers 2,329,317 . 4,339,317
Meddiurm term motes 829,090 7947750 8,776,849
Cross aurfeny swaps 5,530,045 % 530 Dk - -
Inferest rake swaps 4,351,500 & 351 900) . '
Darer liabilities 25,000 . 418,361 443,261
Tosal financid |sbsnies 12,140,232 75813 418,261 16,634,306
Net financial assets/[Rabilities) [1161,312)] 3,033,149 | [378,4251] 1,483,408
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

{3} Market risk {cantimued)

[IH) Sensithvity

The consolidated entity's financial results are exposed to interest rate movements in the market. Shown below

is the potential impact of a 1% increases in interest rate on the consolidated entity’s pre-tax profits for the nest
twelve months, A 1% decrease in interest rate has an opposite impact of the same amouent, subject to interest

rate floor,
Cansalidated Canvalidated
2020 2019
5'000 4000
|Petreasel/imeroase oo pre-1aa prodivg |4.788] 73
[b) Credit risk

The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial
loss for the consolidated entity by failing to dischasge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from
lending activities for financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions and derivative financlal instruments.

[I] Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models
Assessment of significont increase in credit rsk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
consofidated entity considers both quantitative and qualitative infarmation and anabysis based on the
consobidated entity’s historical experience and expert credit risk assessment, including forward-fooking
infarmation.

Retad facilities wse the number of days past due [“DPD”) to determine significant increase in credit risk. The
consofidated entity considers that significant Increase in credit risk occurs when an asset is equal and more than
30 0PD.

Far non-retail lacilities, internally derived credil ratings have been identified as representing the best available
determinant of credit risk, The consolidated entity has adopted the Global Master Grading Model, which was
Initially develaped by Toyata Financial Sendces Corporation and calibrated to the Australia market. The grading
maodel comprises 11 grading bewels for instruments not in default {1 ta 11] and one default class {12), The grading
madel i subject to annual validation and recalsbration so that it reflects the latest projections in the ight of all
actually observed defaults. The consolidated entity assigns cach facility a oredit rating, at initial recognition
based on available information about the borrower. Credi risk is deemed to have increased significantly i the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative to the credit rating at the date of initial
recognition,

Definition of Default

In assessing the impalrment of financial assets under the expected credit loss modal, the consofidated entity

defings a receivable asset ay credit impaired if a default rating is assigned to this asset in sccordance with its

credit policy and procedures, Credit impaired exposure under the expected credit bloss model consist of:

*  Retadl loans and non-rated fleet loans which are contractually past due S0 days.

*  Credit exposures when it becomes obvious that the customer is no longer able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

= |mpaired off-balance sheet credit exposures where current cifcumstances indicate that losses may be
Incurred,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

(o) Credit risk (contined)

{1 Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models [continued)
Colcwlotion of expected credit loss

Expected credit losses are calculated using three main components: PD, LGD and EAD. These parameters are
penerally derived from internally developed statiatical models combined with historical, current and forward-
looking customer and macro-econamic data.

For accounting purposes, the 12 months and lifetime PD represent the expected point-in-time probability of a
default over the next 12 months and remaining lifetime of the finoncial instrement, respectively, based on
conditions existing at the balance sheet date and future economic conditions that affect credit risk. The LGD
represants expected lows conditional en default, taking mie account the mitigating effect of collateral, its
expecied value when realised and the time value of money,

The EAD represents the expected exposure ab default, taking Into account the repayment of principal and
Interest from the balance sheet date (o the default event together with any expected drawdown of 2 facility,
Tha 12 months ECL is equal to the discounted sum over the next 12 manths of monthly PD multiplied by LGD
and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the discounted sum of menthily PD over the full remaining |ife multiplied
by LGD and EAD.

Incarporation of farward-laaking infarmation

The consalidated entity has considered a range of redevant forsard-looking Auitralia macro-gconomic scenario
and assumptions for the determination of unbiased economic forecast and Industry adjustment that support
the eakculation of probability weighted expected lass.

These reflect reasonable and supportable forecasts of future macre-ecanomic conditians that include, But ore
not limited to, unemployment, intenost rates, gross domestic product and house price indax, and require an
evaluation af bath the current and forecast direction of the macro-econamic cycle.

Incorporation of forward-looking information incresses the degree of judgement required as to how changes in
thiese macro-soonamic Fctors will affect ECLs. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak impacting economic activities, tha
ECL is heavily welghted by the COVID-19 pandemic scenario as at the year-end. For the moderate pandemic
scenario, 2020 economic conditions include a negative 1.3% change in GOP, unemployment rate increasing by
%, cash rate at 0% untl end of 2021, AN Ordinaries Index docreasing by 13% and House Price Index decreasing
by 2% in mid-2020, The severe pandemic soenario assumes a negative 2.9% change In GDF, unemployment rate
Imcreasing by 3%, cash rate at 0% wntll mid-2022, All Ordinaries index decreasing by 24% and House Price Index
deorgasing by 2.7% i mid-2020, In addition, the consolidated entity has applied overfays to the models which
Include reduction in property security vakees, risk downgrading to ail exposures, increase in hardship
appbcations. and delinquency, increase in LGD and ndustry overlays. The ECL under the moderate pandemic
sCenario, severe pandemic scenario and severe pandembc with overlays scenariowould be $147.8 million, $165.7
million and $256.9 million, respectively. The ECL recognised as at 31 March 2020 is $239.8 miflion.

Nature and effect of modifications on the measurement of provizian for doubtful debrs

A loan that is renegotiated is derecognised il the existing contract i cancelled and o new agresment made on
substantially different terms or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified swuch that the renegotiated
loan is substantially a different instrument. Where such boans are derecognised, the renegotiated conlract is a
new lgan and impairment is assessed In accordance with the consolidated entity’s accounting policy.

Whan the renegatiated loans are not dorecognised, Impairment continues to be assessed for significant
Increases in credit risk compared to the initial onigination credit risk rating.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

[ba) Credit risk {contined)

[ii} Credit quality and maximum exposure

The consolidated entity's financing assets are exposed to three areas: retall, fleet and wholesale.
Rerall

The retall portfolio is the largest area which comprises a range of boans and receivables from individual
consumers and small business,

Fleet

The fleet portfolio comprises a range of leans and receivables and motar wohicles under oparating lease from
small to large commercial clients and government bodies, it also inthedes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of credit
scoring and manual underariting to identify and evafuate acoeplable risks and portfolio diversification both
demographically and geographically. Credit risk arising from fleet clients is managed by imposition and review
[t & minimum annually] of credit limits (o ensure Meet chents have the capacity 1o settle Rrancial commitments,
Collateral is also used to secure funds advanced.

The consalidated entity uses provisioning models to assess the credit quality of financing assets and estimates
provision for amounts nat collectible. Amounts not provided for are deemed collectible,

Wholesale

The wholesale portfolio includes leor-plan flinance to mator dealers for new and wsed motor vehicle stock under

either

= A bailment facility, under which motor vehicles are bailed by the company 1o a dealer, and the company
retains ownership of each vehicle untll the dealer salls it to 8 customer; or

*  Acharge plan facility, under which the company provides finance to @ dealer for purchase of motor vehicles
which are charged (o the company as seourity.

In addition 1o the fleor-plan fadlities, the wholesale portfolio also includes term loans to dealerships to finance
property and premises, and revolving working capital lpans. These keans are typlcally secured by general security
agresments, real property martgages and perional guarantesd.

Due ta the nature of thews f3cilithes, there it o concentration in the matas vehicle dealership industry, with the
risk spread across market Incations throughout Australia, In addition to the collateral security obtained, credit
risk is rmanaged throwgh regular auditing of the dealerships vehicle inventory, monthly manitoring of financial
performance and ongoing annual reviews, The concentration of credit risk in relation 1o the two operating
segments is reflected in Note 7.

(i) Credit risk exposure by credit quality
The table below show the makimum exposure to oredit risk By key class of financial assets, to which the
expactod cradit boss model is applied, based on how the consalidated entity manages the credit risk

s The days past due for retail and non-rated fleet,
= The risk grade for non-retail portfolio.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk |contineed)

{IH) Credit risk exposure by credit quality [continued)

Retall (general approach)

Consalidated 2020

Equal to and loss than 30 days
T1-60 days

B1-90 days

Cwer S0 days [eredit impaired)
Taital

Consolidated 2019

Equal to and less than 30 days
31-60 days

Bi-90 days

Cwer 90 days [credit impaired)
Taital

‘Whiolesale (general approach)

Consolidated 2020

Grade 1-7 Narmal Risk

Grade 8-1 1 Warchlist

Grade 12 Defau't [credit iImpalred)
Total

Congolidated 2019

Grade 1-7 Normal Risk

Grade 8-11 Watchlst

Grade 17 Defautt (credit impaired)
Tatal

EDINETOOOO
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Loans and recelvables
Lifetime ECL mot Lifetime ECL
12 menth ECL  eredit-impaired  eredit-impaired Totsl
000 5000 000 3000
10,983 648 10,983,648
E 123326 223,325
16,723 - 36,723
E - 50,908 50,998
10,982,648 160,048 03 11,303,695
LHetime ECLmot Ufetime ECL
12 month ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
5000 000 000 4000
10,568.810 - 10,568,810
207,672 207,672
4483% £4.8¥1
i = 59922 59,932
10,568 810 152495 59,922 10,881,227
Loans and receivables and undrown credit limit
Leletime ECLmot  Lifetima ECL
12 month ECL  credit-impaired  eredit-Impaired Totsl
£'000 000 000 L0040
4,416,152 284,877 4,701,029
141,759 141,758
4,416,152 526,606 - 4,942, 788
Litetime ECL mpq Lifetime ECL
12 memhECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
4’000 5000 5000 5000
4070988 114,384 A, 285,372
247233 - 247,233
4,070,988 461,617 - 4,532,605
48
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Finandal risk management [continued)

{b) Credit risk (continued)

{IH} Credit risk exposure by credit quality [continued]
Fleet non-graded customer (simplified approach)

Lease, loans and undrawn credit imits
Lifetime ECLmot  Lifetime ECL

credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
Consolidated 2020 57000 5000 5000
Equal to and less than 30 days 445817 a4g817
T1-60 days 7.540 . 1040
G100 days 2,362 - 2,353
Owier 90 days [credit impaired) - a4.475 4475
Total 459,119 4475 453,594

Lietime ECL mok Ufethme ECL

credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
Consolidated 2019 57000 000 5000
Equal to and less than 30 days 373,242 . 373,242
31-60 days 5411 : 5411
E1-80 days 231X 3312
Crwer 90 days [credit impaired) = 3,200 3.20%
Tatal 380,965 3,200 84,174

Fleet graded customer [4implified approach)

Lease, loans and undrawn credit limits
Lifetime ECLmot  Lifatimae ECL

credit-impaired  credit-impaired Tatal
Consolidated 2020 57000 LS00 L7000
Grode 1-7 Narmal Risk 265319 - 965,319
Grade B-11 Watchisst Bl15E618 - 615,618
Grade 12 Default (credit Impalred) = 3461 3461
Total 1,580,937 3,461 1,584,398

Lifetime ECLnot  Lifetime ECL

credit-impaired  eredit-impaired Tatal
Consolidated 2019 57000 ‘000 5000
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 1,358,837 . 1358837
Grade B-11 Watchlat 312,782 - 32,782
Grade 17 Defaut (credit impaired) - 10,386 10,386
Total 1391619 10386 1402,005
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

b} Credit risk {comtinued)

[Iv} Funding activities

The consofidated entity's treasury department manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as
Standard and Poor's rating of equivalent, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty finencial

condition and ensuring master netting agreements are in place with all derivative counterparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the consolldated entity’s money market deposits and derivatives
relating to funding activities, based on the Standard B Poor's rating.

Consalidated Cansolidaed
i e
Reating % %
AR 13 B
i F F
A BO ]
A 2 .
10 100

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the end of the reporting period, without taking into account collateral
obtained, is the canmying amount, net of any allowance for daubtful debts o impairment, of each financial auset,
Including derivative financial instruments, in the statement of financial position,

[ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the consolidated entity & unable to meet its payment obligations assoclited with its
fimancial Habilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn, The consequence may be
failure to meet obligations to repay creditors and fulfil commitments to lend, The consolidated entity, in the
normal course of business, requires substantial funding o support the level of its earning assets and warking
capital requirements, and consequently is exposed to liquidity risk

The Bauidity management processes earried out by the treasury department includes:

= Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring existing and future cash fiows to endure that requirements can
b met. This includes planning replenishment of funds before they matwe orfand barrowed by customars,
The consolidated entity maintaing an acthve prosence in domestic and international capital markets to
enable this to happen;

. Monitaring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and

*  Maintaining backup credit facilities,

(i} Financing arrangemants

Tha cansolidated entity utilises vanous financing arrangements such as commerdal paper, medium term notes,
bilateral bank loans and securitisation to meet liquidity requirements. It has pecess to a wide array of eredit
facilities to manage Nouidity risk [refer to Note 13

[ii} Maturity of financial liabilities

Thar tables below analyies the consolidated entity’s financial Babilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on their rermaining contractual maturity as at the reperting period for all:

*  non-derivative financial habilitles; and

*  netand gross settled derivative Tinanclal instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash Mlows.

48

1741292



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
ooOooood

Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management [continued)

(e} Liguidity risk {continued)

[i1} matwrity of financial liabilities [continued]

The amounts In the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For Interest rate swaps, the cash flows
have been estimated using forward interest rates applicable at the end af the reporting peried.

<1 1-3 3.12 1-5 Ower 5

month Mionths Months Tears Years Total
Comnsodidated 2020 S000 5'000 $'o00 5'000 5000 4'000
Mer-dorivativis
Banks amd other financial instiutaosn 190,136 265691 1524530 | 2.,657.249 < as3rI0e
Bonds and comemencial paper 1,054,142 2030048 3,401,664 | 10,196,264 -| 15582116
Othaer lisbilithes 496,767 16845 1336 4,680 . 65,631
Lease lighilivee 457 L] 4,595 19471 14,320 S50.37%
Tatsl noe-derivationed 1,741,542 1,313,581 4567, 725 | 11937664 14720 | 31975232
Derivathves
Forward eeign exchange contrscts
- Bought curnéncy {726,539 (B14.366) |380,213) . -| (L52L018)
- Sold currency GG, 0487 Faf ABG 346,862 - - 1,759,705
Interest rale swaps (34 ] [1.807) [0, 5000 |55 B55| . (7503
Croas ourmendy Swaps
Py leg 17317 798,229 | 1006318 | 5915821 7.738,685
« Recrive leg [11,709) (BH3.763)| (L061,514) (5.800.883) «| [(2ESE.ERS]
Total derhatives [E4,211) {144.841) 219,417 90,521 BRI ET]]
Taotal 1677331 21,168,740 4,738,308 | 11,996,743 14,720 | 20595842

<l 1-i 312 1-5 Crr 5

Blanth Manthi Manths Years Yiars Tatal
Conschdated 2019 $000 $'000 000 5000 000 $'000
Non-derivatives
Barks amd other fmanceal instieisans HTAT 0,145 1930441 141,355 - 5226315
Bonds and cammerdial paper BOG,06T 2,164,180 1052238 7672664 -| 13,695,145
Other lishilitie IXE 6T FL 13,719 adr2ar . a3 i
Tatal nom-dertvatrees 1,389,804 2485 25T 5,024,398 | 10461266 19,264,725
Derbvathees
Forward foseign eschange contracts
« Bought currency [577.821)| (1.242538) 1273,230) |2,093,587]
« Sold currency 583,103 1,234,355 267,597 . «| 308343z
IntEnist Fate s 1.878 LE [15.355) 135.708] = (49,0421
Crivy puImency Swipt
- Py g 107459 15.863 1587 510 3,358,356 . 5.469.538
- Reeive lag 1607 355) (L702)]  {1.065640) [3.423.933| = 1EE08E3N
Tatal derheatives 6,304 3477 (28 340)) {101 285 - {187, 298]
Tatal 1356108 A%, 1RO A.506,058 | 10,359,981 = | 15167427
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Operating assets and liabilities

This section covers the operating assets and liabilites of the consolidated entity including cash and cash
eqishvalents, prepayments, accounts pavable and acerued expenses payable.

21. Cash and cash equivalents
Cormolidates Consolidated
2020 2019
5'000 4000
Cash in bank 97376 34,603
Deposits at call 1840000 1,382,000
1,937,976

A1 the end of financial year, the company held restricted cash of $202.9 millien (2019: 5186.5 million) in cash
and doposits at call representing cash collections on securitised assets transferred to spedial purpose entities.

Recognition and measurement

Cash and cash equivabents includes cash in bank, deposits held at call with financial nstiutions, other sharts
term, highly liquid Investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
knawn amounts of cash and which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Cash In bank and deposits at call eam Interest at prevalling market rates. Interest is recognised In the Income
statermnent using the effective interest rate method,

a0
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
22, Cash flow information

(a) Reconcil lation of profit for the year to net cash outflow from operating actlvities

o el
o 19
4'000 4000

Prodi siiribuiable to ownars of the parent 54,340 143,955
Share of profit of sisdate 11,053 18,4595
Depreciation, write-of and amortaation | 16244
Amaot ation - uplronk receipts 1,779 1,980
Amaoetisation - prepald expenses 2% 500 2380
Het gain an sale of mon-curnens assets [EE111] [LS.2a0)
et st on irmnidation of forsign currency irassactiany 1525621 iR 1T
Chasg in Rair vislust of linsncial inilsursenty 10.283,78%] ELERY ]
Mowrmenin o opirolieg Siieis and Dedvitie,

Inreane | Decreatn] i peoviian far impairmest of receivable 135,150 13,6985
Icrease in prowision for mparment on residual value 273710 16,462
Increase In koans and recehabies 11,064, 46:3) |55, 6625
increase in ansets under net operating lese |net of accurwated depredation) [FLEUE] 1e2.nrap
Decrease in delerred taw 24528 - (L1
Inchease in deferned Laa ity 4.55% 5,622
intreate in other, cantract and leace abidities 192311 nmy
Dscreasn|increasn| in other asms 19A25 L]
Discrease In inEome 1z payable [R0.50] |47.588)
|Cecraasalincraass i derreaiive financi sl inscnamants @ fair vales taough profi or ks 3,231 71,257
Net cash outflow from aperating activities [558.555) (1,045, 1845

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

— Wermhchanges
Recogrised  Adantions of

Complidated Fareign on adoption lwme  Comicldsied

2014 [Ty = snthange  Amorbation  of AASH 16 liabsdniey F

000 4000 5300 9000 000 4000 S'00g
Bt g 1EL95,045 L127.148 1341073 2,518 : 20,701,784
Umase iabiiitees [inchading irteres charped] - 18T - 5as 14,565 A% 07

hen-cih chieged
Retegrised  Addition of

Lonsol daved Farelgn o b LT Corslaiated

018 Canhs Mowwrs enchange Amartiataon ol AASE 16 liabdaies k1]

Foon 000 o0 000 o0 §'e00 Foe0
Lo 165F.THE pELERE:S 161454 EERL - = ILAS10A5

o
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

13, Other assets
[ Cans ol
020 019
£'000 4'000
Pirepayments 24 300 20,190
Gaher debtors 11813 35,065
Accrued interedt recebiable on cath dnd cish equtvalents £94 1,454
EL T L L e
Caher assets expected 1o be recovered within 12 manths 36,080 %6, 04%
Caber assels expecied (o be recovered alter mode than 12 monihs B19 GBRT
16,907 56,732
24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities
[a) Other labiities
Comalidsted Consolidated
Fairii] 2019
$'o00 5000
Employoe entitlements 13,959 13,000
Accrisd intiéreit payable 55,134 0,089
Ampunis payable to related entities 167057 187 BB1
Aooounti payable TR5.53R 107,312
Accrsd pspenses {including related parties) 46473 B4, 224
Caker * IBATD 16,755
&0%5,631 443,261
Caher liabilities cvpocted to be settled within 12 manths 550,951 386,014
Daher liabilities enpected to be setiled in more than 12 manhs 544,680 47,247
B05,631 ad3, 261

* & regulatony body & camently condecting a car finence mdustry revies. The company has been seieded for ihe review. At 1he
issuanee of this regan, this review remaint ongaing. AL s 31 Manch 2020, the compasy hat rezogrited o provition af S19.0 millon

in "pahaer”,
[b) Contract labilities
The consolldated entity has recognised the following revenue-related contract labllitles.
Comolidated Consalidated
2020 2019
S1000 5'000
Contract liabilities BE.262 BO.BED

The following table shows how much of the revenwse recognised in the current reporting perlod relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities, Nate the amounts presented below are gross, while the amounts recognised
In the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income are presented net of related costs as the consolidated
entity is acting as an agent.

Rewenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Comolidated Consolidated
010 2019
000 §'000

Rewenue recognised that was included In the contract Habilty balance at
the beginming af the period 60,294 38,085

As permitted under AASE 15, the transaction price allocated to |partially] unsatisfied performance obligations
a5 of 31 Masch 2020 and 31 March 2019 is nat disclosed.

o2
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities (continued)

Employes entithements
{i} Short-tarm obligations

Liabdlities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settbed within 12 months of the end of
cach reporting periad are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reparting
date and are measured at the amounts expected to be pald when the Hability is settied. Labllities for non-
accurmulating sick brave ard recognised when the leave is taken and measured at rates paid or payable,

(i} Other leng-term employes benefit obligations

The Eabilities for long service leave are not expected 1o be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the emaloyees rendered the related service, They are therefore recognised in the provision for
emplayes banefits and measured a5 the present value of expected Tulufe payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of each reporting peried. Consideration is given at expocted future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected fulure payrments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity
and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

The abligations are presented as current liabilitees in the balance sheet if the consalidat ed entity does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at lzast twolve months after the reporting date regardlass of when
the actual settlement |s expected to ooour,

[} Retirement benefit obligation

Al employees of the consolidated entity are entitied to benefits on retirement, disabllity or death acconding 1o
the consofdated entity’s superannuation plan, The comsolidated entity has a defined contribastion plan. The
defined contribution plan recaives fived contributions from the consalidated antity and the consolidated entity’s
legal ond constructive obligation is limited to these contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expende as they become payable. Prepaid

contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund, or a reduction in the future payments is
awailable.
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Non-operating assets

This section outlines the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Incleded in this section are the
fallowing information:

= Inyestment accounted for using the equity method

s Properly, plant and equipment

= Right-of-use assets

= [Intangible assets

= Deferred tax asiet

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method

Consclidated Ownership Interest
Fiirii] 1019 2020 019
Nama of entity 000 S'oo0 k] H
[a] Mavement in canrying amaurt
Unfisted
Tosata Finance New Tealand Limied
Carrying amount at 1 Apeil 17,225 67,331 45.45 4545
Shase of profits after income tax 11,153 8,459
Dividends recehed - E
Het exchange differences on wanslation of lareign
adsociate entity 1667 1,538
Canrging amount at 31 March 90,145 77385

Tha principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were;

. ta finance motor wehicle acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, conswmer and commarcial
loans;

to provide ballment facilities and commercial loans to Toyota dealers:

the marketing of vehicle and finance refated insurance products;

the provision of retall finance and related products for pleasure boats:

the provision of unsecured personal lpans; and

to prowide for car sharing senvices.

Inwestrments in assoclates are accounted for In the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting and are carried a1 cost.
Consoldated Corsolidated

A0 2015

£'000 5'000
[B) Share of associetes” profits
Prafit before Income tax 15,503 11,845
Incomg oo expans — (5350] 13,386)
Prafit sfter income tax 11,153 8,459

Consoldated antity's shane of:
Aszein Liahilities Revenues Profie

[e) Summarised financisl information of assocaes 5'000 000 000 000
Comsoldated 2024
Toyata Finanoe Hew 2ealand Liméted BAG, I35 555,637 B, 340 11,153
Consobdated 2019
Towata Finanos New Tealand Limited 575,447 497,516 61,548 8459
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Non-operating assets (continued)
25, Investment accounted for using the equity method {continued)

Consobdated
2020 2019
'000 £'o00
[d) Share of sssocistes expenditune commitments
Lease commitmenis - 1,666

Frasm 1 April 2019, Tayota Finance Mew Fealand Limited has recognised right-of-uie assets for its property lease.
Principles of consolidation

Aasociates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant inffuence but not controld, generally
accompanying a sharehobding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial staterments using the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

The consolidated entity’s share of its assacdates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised In profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves 18 recognised (n other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisitien movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends
receivable from associates are recognised in the consolidated financiol statements as & reduction against the
carrying amount of the investment,

When the consolidated entity’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
Including any other unsecured long-tarm recenvables, the consalidated entity does not recognisa further losses,
unless it has Incurred obligations or made paymients on behalf of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the conselidated entity and its associates are climinated to the cxtent
of the consoldated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealsed kosses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity.

Foredgn currency translation

[a)} Functional and presentation currency

Iterns incleded in the financial statements of each of the consofidated entities are measured using the currency
of the primary ecanomic enviranment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidmed
financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which & the company’s functional and presentation

CUTTEICY.

On cansolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign
entity from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other compaehensive income,

[b) Transactions and balances
Forgign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the tramsactions. Foreign exchange gaims and losses resulting from the settlement of such

tramsactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and Rabilities denominated
Im foreign currencies are recognised In profit o loss.
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Non-operating assets (continued)

26. Property, plant and equipment

Comsolidated 2020

Leasehold Improsements
Plant and equipment
Motar vokiches

Comsalidsted 2019

Lexsebold Improvements
Plant and equipment
Mator vehicles

Comsalidated 2020

Carrying walue 32 1 April
Additions
DHsposals
Depreciation
Transfers
Write-off
Carrying walue at 31 March

Comsolidsted 2019

Carrying value at 1 April
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Carrying value at 31 March
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Accumulated
Cost deprecistion Carrying value
5000 £'060 £'000
33,100 5,695 13405
8,315 5310 3,005
9,214 L1775 TAFS
£0,629 16,780 23,849
Acgumiudated
Cost dupreciation Carrying valua
5000 5'000 £'000
10417 B350 2,050
M 1na 23,659 4520
7479 10132 6,457
46,115 33058 13,046
Liras e hold Plant and
Improvemonts aquipmant Maotor vahiclos Tatals
§'000 5'000 $'000 4000
2,059 4,520 BAGY 13046
13,447 1,978 6,078 21,503
. . 13111 13,111}
[1,445) 12.183] {1.995] 15,623
{i62) 162 - -
(494} 11,472] - |1,566)
13,405 3,005 7,439 23,845
Leasehald Plant and
Improvements equipment Moter vehicles Teitals
5000 5000 5'000 5000
482 2,142 SAM 8,451
1,009 4216 6,850 13,085
x F 1a.451) [2,441)
|43} {1, 838] {1.781) [4,051)
2,059 4,520 G467 13,046
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Non-operating assets (continued)
26. Proparty, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
In profit or loss,

Recognition and measurement

Property and eguipment are stated at histoncal cost less acoumulated depreciation, Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisithon of the items.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carnying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future econamic benefits associated with the item will llow to the consalidaved
entity and the cost of tha item can be measured raliably, All other repains and maintenance ane charged to profit
or lass during the finamcial period in which they are incurred,

Degrecistion of property and equipment (s calculated wing the straight kne method ta allacate their cost, net
of thelr residual vahees, over their estimated wseful lives, a5 follows:

Asset class Method Estimated useful life

Plant and equlpment Straight line 3-5 years

Motor virhicles Straight line 1-3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Unexpired portion of lease or useful

life of asset whichever i shorter

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down imesediately o its recowerable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
Is groater than its estimated recoverable amount,

av
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Non-operating assets (continued)
17. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 Marh 2020 1 Apeil 2019
$'000 §'000
Properic 43,087 35,318
Total right-chuse assets 42,087 38318
Lease llabilities 45,087 35315
Tatal lnase Habilises 45,087 /35
Maturity analysis
Currevl
Lease llabilities 4,042 181
Nen-Current
Lestses liabifities 40,145 3384
45,087 35,518

Additions 1o the fight-of-use aseets during the financial year were $48,620,000, out of which 535,315,000 were
recognised on adogtien of AASB 16 Legses. The impact of the adoption of the leasing stendard s disclosed In
Mote 318

The statement of prnfi: or loss shiws the following amowents relating (o leates:

Conalidated Consplidated
2020 019
Kote 000 S'000
Depreciation change of right-of-use assets
Properties 5 6,553 ]
Ingerost expenss (ncluded in intonest cxpenss and similar changes) 3a 1,144
Experrie relsling 10 short-term beides (mudid in stoupandy mpense) oay

The total cash cutfiow for leases (excluding short term beases) during the financial year was 55,197,000,
[a) The conzolidated entity"s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The consalidated entity leases various offices. Rental contracty ane typically made fos fied periods of 3 to 10
years but may have extension options as described below, Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different berms and canditions.

Until the 2019 financial year, leases of property were classified as operating leases, Payments made under
operating leases [net of any incentives received] were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liabllity at the date at which
the lrased asset is available for use by the consolidated ontity, Each lease payment is allecated between the
liability and fimance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss aver the lease period so as to produce a
constant periadic rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset
Is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Non-operating assets (continued)
27. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

[a) The consolidated entity’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initialfy measured an a present value basts. Lease labifties incheda
the net present value of the following lease payments:

. Fined payments, e any lease incentived receivable, and

= yarisble lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

Thar brase payrmients are discounted wting the incremental borrowing rale, being the rate that the consolidated
entity would have to pay to bormow the funds necessary to obtaln an assat of similar vakie in a similar economic
emdiranment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged 1o profit or loss
over the |ease period 50 a5 to produce 2 constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for mach period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

= the amount af the initial measerement of lease lisbdity,

& any lease payrments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recelved, and
& anyinitial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depeeciated over the sharter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on o straight-line basis a3 an expende in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are beases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

[Bb) Extension aption

Extension option is included In a number of property leases across the consolidated entity. These terms are used
ta maximise eperational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majarity of extension aptions held are
cxercisable only by the consolidated entity and nat by the respective lessor.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and ciroumstances that create an econemic
Incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termbnation option. Extension options, or periods

after termination options, are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended,
or not terminated.

29
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Non-operating assets (continued)
28. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement
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Software consists of capitalised IT development costs belng internally generated intanglble assets. These consist
of system software purchosed and customised to the needs of the consolidated entity as well as imernally

developed software profects.

Capitalised software ks recognised whan it Is probable that the project (i) will be completed considering its
commesciad and techmical feasibility, (i) will contribute to fulure petiod linancial benefits through revenus
generation andfor cost reductions and (I} Its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure capitalised
comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services and direct labaur. Capitafived
computer softwane devalopmaent is amartised from the point at which the assat is ready for use on a straight

line basis aver its useful life, which varies fram 3 to 10 years,

Impairment of astets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circurmstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recowverable. An impairmant loss s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount excesds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset”s fair value
less casts to resall and value in use. For the purposes of assessing iImpairmant, assets are grouped at the lowest
lewiels for which there are separatelly identifiable cash inflows which are largely Independent of the cash inflows

from othor asset groups (cash ganerating units).

Coat
Software 000
Consalidated 330 186418
Consalidated 2019 171,357

Carrying value at 1 Agril
Acditions
Amortisalion expents
Carrying valse at 31 March

60
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5'000 5000
154,903 &1 435
141,024 30,333

Cormolidated Conaalidated
2020 2019
5'000 5000

30,333 25,156
25.062 17.170
113,965} [12.193)
A1 A6 30,333
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Non-operating assets (continued)
29. Deferred tax assets

Refer to Note B Incoms 1ax expense for further information on income tas.

P T et PR W e
10 019
000 5000
Daferrod tax it baliaed comprise Wemporary dffannied
atiributable to:
A nts recapnised in the Balance sheet
Prowision Bor impairenient of kasns and Sdvancis 7,930 &0, 164
Financtall ingtruments [30,590) 6,125
Al xperim 37,070 3130
Susndry fewni 7 AED 5019
Tatal amownt recogniied in 1he balance shewt 102,851 F3400
Duerred tax sbility balances comprice temporiry diffe rencss
atiributable to:
Admmeunts recapniied in the balance vhest
Aseeis financed under kease 07,162 FL.A38
Sundry e 5866 1193
Tatal amowent recogeted im the balance sheet 113,038 39,031
Het deterred tas Hahilities (10,577} (5.5622)
Groas deferred taw assets opening balance 93,400 96,238
Mpyement in temporany diflerences during the year
Proneivion for impainment of kaens and advanci 48,756 1237y
Fimandcial imstruments (5, 724 {4, 7ES)
Arcrucd cEpEnses 4, 7es 1,845
Sundry dems 1,641 1,348
Gross deferred tax assets closing balance 102,851 93,409
Groas deferred taw lzbilikes opening balance 98,031 74,590
Mioemeenit in temporany diferences during tUhe year
Anzets financed under lease 15,324 13,772
Sundry dems LERH] 1,269
Groas deferred tau liabilithes dosing balance 113,028 59,031
Het deferred tam liablithes {10,077) (5,622}
Cedesred tax Habliities expecied {0 be setthed within 1F manths {2,091 [21,438)
Dieforred tax asset epected to be settied beyond 12 months 18,080 15817
{10,177) {5,622}

g1
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Unrecopnised items

This section provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do not
satisfy the recognition criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the fnancial performance of the
consalidated entity.

30, Contingent liabilities

The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Austrafia Umited G5T Group ("G5T Group®), s
jaintty and severally liable Tor 100% of the goods and services tax {“GST") payable by the G5T Group, The GST
Graoup had a net G5T payable as at 31 March 2020 of 557.9 million [2019: 550.4 millian),

The company, In association with other Australian incorporated entithes with a common owner, implemented
the income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Moetor Corporatien Australia Uimited as
the head entity, Under the inceme tax conselidation legistation, income tax consolidation entities ane jontly and
severally liable for the income tax lisbility of the consolidated income tax group unless an (ncarme tax sharing
agreement has been entered into by membser entities. At the date of signing this financial report an income tax
sharing agresment has been sxscuted.

31. Commitments
[a) Lease commitrents
Coralidated Comsalidated
2020 2019
5'000 5'000
Dperating lnases
Apgrepste amount contracted but not provided for i the socounts sne & follows:
Premises . 47,042
Due within one yesr - 3323
Due after one year but no Later than fve years . 12,735
D after five yaars . 11,084
47,002

The company |leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renepotiated.

Friovm 1 April 2019, the company has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except far short-term leases.
Refer to Notes 27 and 38 for further infarmation.

[b) Capital commitments
Corolidated Corsodidated
1030 108
Capital commitments £'000 4000
Espeenditures contracted for at the end of cach reporting period bt not
recopnised ot Habdnkes s as feliows:
Intangible assely 2,141 o

32, Subsequent events

The directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with In the repart or
financial statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the conwelidated entity,
the resufts of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consclidated entity im subsequent financial years.
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Other disclosure matters
This section covers other information that is not directly related to specific line iems in the financial statemsents,

including infarmatian about subsidiaries, related parfy transactions, parent enatity infermation and other
statutory disclosures.

33, Subsidiaries

The consolidated finandal statements incorporate the assets, labilitles, and results of the following subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting palicy described in Nate 2b:

Ownership interest
Country of Class of 2020 019
Mame of entity incarporation shares % %
Australian Allisnee Automative Finsnce Pty Limited® Ausiralia Ordinary 100 100

* Investment valos of 52 has boen rounded to ril. This subskdiary has been granted refief from the necessity ta prepare financlal
stilerrsenls o scoordance with ASIC Imstrurrenl 2006785 baued by the Kuatrablin Securiles and Investment Comembsion. Fox
hurthar inlormution, refer to Nate 17, The propanion of ihe awnenbip interest i equil bo 1he praportian of wiling power hald,

Units ownad
2030 019
Name of trust * ]
Southern Cross Toyota 2009-1 Trust** 100 100
King Koala TFA 20121 Trust*® 100 100

** |nvestment valug af 510 has bean roumsed 1o $ai

34, Related party transaction

This nate shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consalidated entity and the
Impact they had on the finandial performance and position of the conselidated entity,

[a) Entities in the wholly owned group

The ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a whally awned subsidizry of Toyota
Financlal Services Corporation, which Is a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent entity, Toyota Motor
Corparation incorparated in Japan.

{b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 33,

[e) Associntes

|InvesErnents in associates are w81 out in Note 25,

[d) Key management personnel
fi} ey monogement personnel compensation
Consolidated Consolidated
2020 019
% §
Shari-term employes benelits, post-emplayment,
oiher long-term snd temmination benefits 3,183,110 2803 000
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

34, Related party transaction (continued)

() Key management personnel (continued)

fif) Equity instrument disclosures nelating fo key manogement persanne!

There were no issued ordinary shares of the ultimate parent entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, lapan
under option to key managerment persannel as at 31 March 2020,

fiii] Lowns to key manogerment persannel
No loans to key management personnel were recognised as at 31 March 2020 and 2019,
{e} Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions and balances with related parties are set out below, These are included in the consolidated entity's
comsofidated statement of comprehensive income and conselidated staterment of financial position for the

pertiod,
Consolidated Consolidated
2020 2019
5'000 5'000

Nt Fnancing income
Affiliate fnance intome 17,580 10,354
Credit suppen fees paid to parent entity i17.993) |15,365)
Dbt bssuance fees pald to affillated entity (108) |
Dbt idnande feed padd fo parent entity (201 122%)
service foe patd to affilated entity . 1351]
Expsrses
Marieting expenses paid to affiliated entigy 207 BE4T
Security shared servioss fee 143 B4
Consuiting eupenses paid to parent entity . a7
Assots
Laans ardl reeniables

Defemed finance income from affillates® [21,365] |26 516
Caher aasets

Accounts receteabile fram affiliagtes® 2,030 4 BRE
Liahilities
Man-interest bearing lasns payable 1o affifiates 40,786 35,454
Accounts payable to affiiates® 115,675 139,405
Actocunts payable Lo parent entity® 9,596 8022
Accrsed mpansas payabile to affliates B4D .
* Non-inugneis boaring

No bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debts were recognised in relation to any receivable due from
related parthes as at 31 March 2020 and 31 Manch 2019,
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35, Parent entity information

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
Parent Parent
020 e
$'000 $'000
ALERTS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,937,976 1.A16,E03
Loars and recenables 17,502,873 17.076,012
Mater vehicles under operating lease 1567432 LA14487
Derivative finandal Instruments 1562206 343,139
Inwestments aocounted for using the equity method i 284 i TR
Intangible mdets 41,426 10,333
Property, plant and eguipmeent 23 E49 13, D86
Right-of-use ascets 42 067
Crther atsets 1,385, 304 S8, &53
Total assels 24,067,314 21,206,756
Liabilities
Chse 10 banks and pther Bnandcial institutions 1,533,155 1834625
Bonds and commiercial paper 16,135,283 13,106,166
Related party liabiitees 3827271 4,102,375
Derivative financial stmments 111415 143,422
Deferred tax liabilfies 12577 5,622
Crher liabilities 611,642 443 261
Cantract liabilities 89,262 B0, B30
Lesse liabilities 45 mET -
Total lishilithes 22 466,692 18,716,300
Met assets 1,600,623 1,490,455
Equity
Contributed equity 120,000 120,000
Rissarvies . a
Retained earnings : 1480622 1370455
Total equity 1,600,623 1,490,455

A5 at 31 March 2020, current assets and current fiabilities amounted to 510,416 million and 59,141 milien
respectively [2019: 58,947 million and 58,998 million respectively).
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35, Parent entity information (continued)

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Parent Parent
020 o1y
000 $'000
Imterest reverue TER SRS 759 4331
Ranital irecomes on motor vehecles under operating lease 391 487 358,461
Fa Incoima . _BIATS __39.401
Financing and similar reve nus 1,193,550 1,197 385
Irieresi experse and similar :hargﬁ (434 574) (652,687
Depreiation epense on Moter wehicks under operating lease (324,018} [299,686)
Finsncing expenie @nd similar charges [T58,5902) (203 383}
et fnandng revenae @34 558 194,002
Onher revenus 1649, 740 195, 484
Met operating income hoE a8 A8 dBE
Creddit impairment fosie (189, 1827) (A5, D)
Man-ocredit impairmient basses 2T AT0) |16, 462
Employee benefits expense [164,035) (133,503
Depreciation, write-off and amartisation 28,111 (16,284)
IT and communication gpandt {30, 840| 159,460}
Sales and markoting expemie 111.%67) [11,42%)
Deoupancy Caponse 13,634| 13,347)
Ciher expenies [4.546) (24,8211
Prafit belone intame tax 144,767 12,913
It Lan expense i34 5040) |54, 567)
Prafit after income tax 110,367 153,346

[a] Guarantees entered into by the parent entity
The company has no financial guarantee in relation to securitisation of loans and recelvables.

[b) Contingent liabilities of the parent ontity
Refer to Note 30 - Contingent liabilities

[ch Contractual cormmitments by the parent entlty
Aefer to Note 31 - Commitrments
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During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity,

Its related practices and non-related audit firmes:

PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australlan firm
Audit or review af Lhe finenca reports
Caner awdit-related wark

Other assurance services.

Totad audit and other asurance services

Taxatian
Total remuneration

Related practices of Pric t Coop A fiaan firm
[ncluding owersess PricewatechouseCoopers firms)
Char assurance services

37. Deed of cross guarantoe

Consaliduted
2018
§
652,308 579,732
382,085 264,635
231,244 339,961
1316207 1,184,328
a2 —c 01
1345848 1,218,156
123838 134,218

Toyota Finance Australla Umdted and Australian Alllance Automotive Finance Piy Limited are parties to a deed
ol eross puarantee under which each company guarantees the debis of the other. By entering into the deed, the
wholly owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and a directors’
report under ASIC Instrument 2006/TES msued by the Australian Seeurities and Investm ents Commission.

The above companies represent 0 “Olosed Growp™ for the purposes of the Legisiative Instrument, and as thore
are no other parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Umited,

they abso regresent the “Extended Closed Group”.

The net assets of the closed group a5 at 31 March 2020 were 51,664.0 milkon [2019: 51,563.5 million) and the
profit before income tax of the closed group for the year ended 31 March 2030 was 51238 million (2019; $221.4

million).

67

193/292



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Other disclosure matters [continued)
38, Changes in accounting policy

This note explains the impact of adoption of AASE 16 Leases on the consolidated entity's financial staterments
and discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 April 2089, where they are different 1o
those applied in prior periods.

The consolidated entity has adopted AASB 16 retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the financial year 2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions
In the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2019, The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 27,

On adoption of AASE 16, the consolidated entity recognised lease liabdlities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “aperating leases” under the principles of AASE 117 Leases. These liabilities wore
measured af the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incrermental barrowing
rate as of 1 April 2019, The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applicd to the lease labilities on 1
Apdil 2019 wos 2.8%.

{a} Practical expedients applied

In applying AASE 16 for the first time, the consolidated entity has used the following practical expedients

permitted by the standard;

= the sccounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 manths as a1 1 Apeil 2019
as short-term leases, and

*  the use of hindsight in determéening the lease term where the centract contains optlons 1o extend or
termuinals the leake.

The cansalidated entity has aluo elected not (o reassess whether a cantract is, of containg a lease at the date of
Initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the consolidated entity relied
on its assesement made applying AASE 117 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement containg

o Lease.
[b) Measurement of lease labilities
7000

Operating leate commitments discloded ai st 31 March 2019 47,042
Distounted uting the lesses's incrementsl barrawing rate of at the date of initial application 40,912
[Less): shart-term leases secognised on a stralght-ling basis a3 spenie [428)
[Lessf: heases committed to but commencing after 1 April 2019 [5,161]
Lease liability recognised as ot 1 Apdl 2019 35315
Of which are:

Current hense liabilities 1441

Mor-Current lease Rabilties 33,874

ﬁgli

[e) Measuremant of right-of-use assets

Thae recognised right-of-use assets relate to properties. The asseciated right-of-use assets for property leases
were measured at the amount equal to the lease llabdity. There were ng onerows fease contracts that wiould
hawe required an adjustment to the right-of .use assets at the date of initial application,
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
38, Changes in accounting policy (continued)

[d) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 April 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items In the balance sheet an 1 April 200%:
®  right-of-use assets = Increase by 535,315,000
»  lease liability = increase by 535,315,000

[e) Lesser accounting

The consalidated entity did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a redult of the adoption of AASE 16.
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MRECTORS' DECLARATION
In the directors’ opinion:

fa) the finenclsl statements and notes set out on pages & to &9 are in accordance with the Corparations Act
2001, Inchading:

1] complying with Aceeunting Standards, the Corparotions Regulotions 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requiremants; and

{1} gring a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 March 2020 and
af s performance Tor the year ended an that date; and

[b] there afe reatonable groundt 10 believe that the company will be able to pay its debss as and when they
become die and payabie; and

[c] a1 the date of this declaration, there are redsonable grounds to belisve 1hal the members al the
Extended Cloted Group identified in note 37 will be able to meot any obligations or labdities to which
thary are, or may becornie, subject by virtue of the deed of erass guarantes described n note 37,

Nate Ha) condirms that the fnandal statements slsa eamply with iaternational Financial Beparting Standards
as lsued by the inter I dccounting Standards Board,

Thits declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sydaey
O Jung 2020
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( )| 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510 | 30,225,681 | 29,929,992
( ) 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
( ) 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
( ) 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
( )| 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076 | 20,565,210 | 21,241,851
( )| 47,427,507 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249 | 51,936,949 | 52,680,436
() 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92 7,252.17
() 741.36 605.47 842.00 650.55 735.61
() 735.36 599.22 832.78 645.11 729.50
() 35.3 35.9 37.2 37.3 38.1
() 13.8 10.6 13.7 9.8 10.4
() 8.0 10.0 8.1 10.0 8.8
( ) 4,460,857 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
( ) 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,607,241 3,150,861
( ) 423,571 375,165 449,135 540,839 397,138
( ) 2,939,428 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
) 348,877 364,445 369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 1 [ 86,843] [ 86,005] [ 84,731]| [ 87,129]| [ 86,219]|
)
2019
2017 2018
( )
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)
112 113 114 115 116
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443 | 12,634,430 | 12,729,731
¢ | 2.28s,001| 1,801,736 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,121 | 1,735,365
¢ | 1.810,370| 1,520,011 | 1,859,312 | 1,806,824 | 1,424,062
« ) 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401
( 3,337,907 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997
( 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( )| 10,859,443 | 11,365,784 | 12,040,947 | 12,450,274 | 12,590,890
( | 16,100,209 | 16,592,167 | 17,200,436 | 17,716,903 | 17,809,246
) 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72 4,225.55 4,377.19
210 210 220 220 220
, ) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
52 105 158 211 264
, () ( 26.0) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) (105.5) (132.0)
) 581.08 506.96 628.31 657.10 504.25
() 575.64 500.65 620.85 649.89 500.27
() 67.4 68.5 70.0 70.3 70.7
() 17.2 13.8 15.9 15.5 11.4
) 10.2 11.9 10.9 9.9 12.9
() 36.1 41.4 35.0 33.5 43.6
O 72,721 73,875 74,890 74,515 74,132
[ [10371]]  [10700))  [10.905) [ 11.122])| [ 10,795]]
D) 735 771 89.0 87.6 90.4
( () ( 89.2) (102.3) (118.5) (112.5) (101.8)
TOP1X)
D) 8,637 7,156 7,782 7,502 7,929
D) 5,710 4,975 5,605 6,079 5,941
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 115
114
)
( )
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@
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906 2,200,557
( 330,190 215,447 280,769 313,306 281,329
( 232,719 148,687 509,930 222,308 223,836
( 82,594 117,191 439,270 267,214 103,547
( 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403 3,005,729
( 21,379,657 | 22,188,626 | 22,636,927 | 23,660,621 | 24,574,145
( ) | 1.372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41 | 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41
() 148,181.83 94,674.94 | 324,692.91 | 141,552.90 |  142,525.61
() = = - - =
() 10.1 10.2 11.9 12.1 12.0
() 11.0 6.7 20.5 8.0 7.7
() — — — — —
( — J— J— J— —
( P J— J— J— P
( _ J— - J— _
( - J— J— J— -
) 9,670 10,172 10,364 10,634 11,469
(1,536) (1,548) (1,450) (1,540) (1,542)
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 2019
2018
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@
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
41,846 39,854 58,411 75,532 67,138
30,975 28,947 47,297 63,027 52,635
27,192 26,160 42,983 57,665 43,866
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
556,311 581,408 624,560 580,459 621,868
562,541 589,136 633,111 586,472 629,775
354,225.54 | 370,206.23 | 397,682.51 | 369,601.93 |  395,968.40
_ . . 63,674.00 .
(63,674.00)
17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92 27,931.86
98.9 98.7 98.6 99.0 98.7
5.0 4.6 7.1 9.6 7.3
— — — 173.4 —
86 79 73 85 99
@17 (18) (16) (14) @17

(

)
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)
)
635,401 100
)
16,500 100
Plano, ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
)
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Amsterdanm, )
( Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 137,350
100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, )
New Soth Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
Bangkok, Thailand (876‘11)
16,600 )
4,100,000 100
53
)
) (
)
( )

10
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2020 31
)
2,135
3,419
1,227
4,589
C ) 99
11,469 (1,542)
)
( )
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2020 31
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I ndependent auditor's report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the

Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financia position asat 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors' declaration.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
financial report for the year ended 31 March 2019, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financia report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financia report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 5 June 2019
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I ndependent auditor’s report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities

(together the Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of itsfinancia performance for
the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changesin equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

I ndependence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have aso fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual financial report for the year ended 31 March 2020, but does not include the financia report and our auditor's
report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control asthe
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as agoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsihilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 5 June 2020
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